
DISTRICT OF HUDSON’S HOPE 
AGENDA 
Council Chambers 
Tuesday October 10th, 2017 at 6:00PM 

1. Call to Order:

2. Delegations:

D1 Yellowhead Road & Bridge Page 1 

3. Notice of New Business:
Mayor’s List
Councillors Additions
CAO’s Additions

4. Adoption of Agenda by Consensus:

5. Declaration of Conflict of Interest:

6. Adoption of Minutes:

M1 September 11th , 2017 Regular Council Meeting Page 3 

7. Business Arising From the Minutes:

8. Staff Reports:

SR1 CAO Action and Other Updates Page 10 

SR2 Project reports Page 13 

SR3 Speed Limit Change Page 27 

SR4 Crosswalks and warning devices Page 28 

SR5 2017 Tax Sale Page 31 

SR6 Curbs Cementing Dudley Drive Page 33 

SR7 Valve Replacement Project Page 36 

SR8 Commemorative Plaques Page 37 

9. Committee Meeting Reports:

10. Bylaws:

B1 Officer Bylaw No. 891, 2017 Page 38 



District of Hudson’s Hope October 10th 2017 
Council Meeting Agenda  Page 2 
 

 

    

11. Correspondence  

 C1 Waste Reduction Week Challenge  Page 44 

 C2 Collaborative Emergency Management Model  Page 46 

 C3 Greyhound Service Elimination Resolution to 
UBCM 

 Page 50 

 C4 Request from Ministry of Municipal Affairs  Page 52 

 C5 BC Natural Resources Forum  Page 54 

 C6 Letter of request from Valerie Paice  Page 57 

 C7 Invitation for Submissions-Cannabis 
Regulation in British Columbia                         

 Page 58 

 C8 Salish Sea Heritage, & House of Commons E-
Petition 1269 

 Page 68 

 C9 Notice of Site C Construction Activities: 
October 2017 

 Page 71 

 C10 Local Government Leadership 
Academy's 2017 CEO Forum  

 Page 77 

 C11 Letter from Honourable Katrine Conroy  Page 79 

 C12 UBCM newsletter- UBCM 2018  Page 80 

 C13 The BC Municipal Climate Leadership  Page 81 

 
12. 

 
Reports by Mayor & Council on Meetings and Liaison Responsibilities 

 CR1 Mayor Johansson-UBCM report   Page 82 

 CR2 Councillor Gillis-UBCM report   Page 85 

 CR3 Councillor Heiberg- UBCM report   Page 86 

 CR4 Councillor Miller-UBCM Report   Page 88 

 
13. 

 
Old Business: 

    

    

14. 
 

15. 
 

Public Inquiries: 
 
Adjournment: 

  



October 10, 2017 Regular Council Meeting Agenda

1 of 89

clerk
Typewritten Text
D1



October 10, 2017 Regular Council Meeting Agenda

2 of 89



  
 

 REGULAR COUNCIL MEETING 
September 11, 2017 

6:00 P.M. 
MUNICIPAL HALL COUNCIL CHAMBERS 

 
 
Present: 

 
 
 
 
         

   
 
 
            
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 

1. 
 
 
 

2. 
 
 

3. 
 
 
 
 
 

4. 
 

5. 
 

6. 
 

M1 
 
 
 
 
 
 

 
 
 

Council:    Mayor Gwen Johansson 
Councillor Dave Heiberg 

                 Councillor Heather Middleton 
                 Councillor Kelly Miller                  
                 Councillor Nicole Gilliss 

Councillor Travous Quibell 
Councillor Caroline Beam 
 

Absent:    
                 
 
Staff:       CAO, Tom Matus 
                Director of Protective Services, Robert Norton 
                Bylaw Officer/Safety Officer, Wallace Roach 
                Corporate Officer, Tammy McKeown 
                                            
Other:  
                                        
CALL TO ORDER: 
The meeting called to order at 6:00 p.m. with Mayor Gwen 
Johansson presiding. 
 
DELEGATIONS: 

 
 
NOTICE OF NEW BUSINESS: 
 
Mayors Additions:  CR2 
Councillors Additions: CM1 
Staff Additions:  SR1 addition, C4 
 
ADOPTION OF AGENDA AS AMENDED BY CONSENSUS: 
 
DECLARATION OF CONFLICT OF INTEREST: 
 
ADOPTION OF MINUTES:      
 
August 28th, 2017 Regular Council Meeting  
Correction: Councillor Heiberg declared meeting adjourned 
                  Councillor Heiberg to certify as correct 
                  SR2- include name of Rutledge building 
                  CR1-include under discussion of letter: 

o Concerns voiced in regard to optics, 
consideration needs to be given in regard to 
partnerships and existing terms of 
reference. 
 

 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 

0550-01 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 

 

October 10, 2017 Regular Council Meeting Agenda

3 of 89

clerk
Typewritten Text
M1



 
 
 
 
 
 
 

7. 
BA1 

 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 

BA2 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 

8. 
 

SR1 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 

RESOLUTION NO. 181/17 
M/S Councillors Heiberg/Quibell 
That 
“The minutes of the August 28th, 2017 Regular Council Meeting be 
adopted as amended.” 
CARRIED 
6:03pm Councillors Gillis and Beam arrived 
 
BUSINESS ARISING OUT OF THE MINUTES: 
SR1- Northern Development Initiative Trust (NDIT) 

• Follow-up with Integrity in regard to the quotes for the two 
options for replacing the Hudson’s Hope Community Hall.  
First option was to build onto the Curling Club, second option 
was to build a new free standing building.  

• Lions Club is the main user of the Community Hall and their 
preference would be for the free standing building. 

• Councillor Quibell will provide dimensions for new building to 
CAO to be forwarded to Integrity for the quote. 

• Councillors Middleton and Quibell to meet to discuss options 
once quotes have been obtained. 
 

CR1- Letter to BC Utilities Commission(BCUC) 
• Commission holding a public consultation session in Hudson’s 

Hope on September 30, 2017. 
• Council will register to participate at the session as an 

affected stakeholder. 
• Council members to e-mail any additional information they 

want included at the meeting to Mayor Johansson.  Request 
will be forwarded to all Council, from Mayor Johansson, to 
vote on whether or not it is to be included.  Vote will be 
conducted via e-vote. 

• Submissions must be to Mayor Johansson by Friday 
September 22. 

• Letter previously submitted to BCUC  
 

 
STAFF REPORTS: 
 
CAO Report- Action and other Updates  

• Grant writing 
o Regional District is working on a proposal in regard to 

hiring a grant writer to share between the communities 
o The District of Hudson’s Hope will wait to make any 

decisions in regard to hiring a grant writer until after 
reviewing the proposal    

• Director of Public Works 
o A good candidate had been offered the position but due 

to health issues they needed to withdraw their 
application. 

o The position has been reposted with a closing date of 
September 22, 2017. 

• Valve Replacement Project Report  
o Concern voiced in regard to safety issues that may arise 

due to water shut-off. 
o There should be internal policies in place for the clinic. 

 
 
 
 
 
 
 

 
1855-01 
0230-20 
0810-01 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
6660-20 
0400-30 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 0110-01 
 
 
 
 
 
 
2790-01 
 
 
 
 
 
5600-01 

 
 
 
 

October 10, 2017 Regular Council Meeting Agenda

4 of 89



 
 
 

SR2 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 

SR3 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 

o Director of Protective Services will determine if there are 
other protocols in place.  
 

Protective Services Update  
• Fire Dispatch Services- Director of Protective Services 

o Have ensured all civic address mapping for the District 
is accurate and accessible 

o Working with North Island 911 to ensure dispatchers 
are able to link geospatial data to locations. 

− Have entered coordinates via GIS to 911 for all 
local areas without civic addresses. i.e Bullhead 
Mountain, Dinosaur Lake etc.  

− Will be beneficial to the community due to 
higher reliability and standard of services. 

− Community members with alarm monitoring 
should notify their security provider to contact 
North Island for emergency response. 
 

o Everbridge is an Emergency Notification System that is 
used by many different municipalities. 

− Community members will have the capability to 
sign up through the system. 

− It will provide choices in regard to ways for 
member to be notified and what notifications 
they want to receive. 

− Can track functional needs of the community 
i.e. transportation issues, mobility issues, 
additional medical needs. 

− The message can be sent to a set area or to all 
of the community. 

− Has response capability. 
− If the Regional District covers the installation 

under 911 there will be minimal to no cost for 
the District of Hudson’s Hope. 
 

• Bylaw Enforcement- Bylaw Enforcement Officer 
o Compliance Issues 

− Developing relationships with the community 
members 

− Those members who care about the community 
will be compliant 

o Workload consists of complaints received from the 
community and through conducting neighbourhood 
drive-byes. 

 
Road Use Permits  

• Report for Information purposes  
• CAO is still attempting to locate examples from British 

Columbia. 
• Legislation under Section 36 and Section 42 of the 

Community Charter allows Council to enact bylaws to 
implement restrictions and fees in regard to use of district 
roads.  
 

 

 
 
 
 
7150-00 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
7130-01 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
4000-01 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
5400-01 
4520-01 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 

October 10, 2017 Regular Council Meeting Agenda

5 of 89



SR4 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 

10. 
CM1 

 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 

CM2 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 

Arena Floor 
• The unforeseen need to replace the showers is justification to 

keep reserve funds well-funded 
• Concerns from Men’s Rec Hockey in regard to space needed 

for the new showers and in regard to supply of hot water. 
• The individual stalls will stand in the same location that the 3 

person gang showers had occupied. 
• District have not been informed by the plumber of any hot 

water concerns. 
• To install a proper gang shower would take a larger space, 

reducing the space available for the change area. 
• Unable to apply for funding through a grant due to timing 

issues; must attempt to complete showers prior to opening of 
Arena. 

• Staff directed to notify Council as to when the ice will be 
installed at the Arena. 

RESOLUTION NO.182/17  
M/S Councillors Heiberg/Quibell 
That 
“Council approve the expenditure of $7000.00 to supply and install 
nine toilets; $12,000.00 to supply and install seven showers; 
$6,300.00 to remove the shower bases; $8,400.00 for the cement 
removal for drainage purposes; and a contingency amount of 
$5,000.00: for a total of $38,700.00.” 
CARRIED 
 

 
COMMITTEE MEETING REPORTS: 
Museum Report- Councillor Miller 

• 1600 people visited the museum since July; no statistics are 
available on users. 

• No one has contacted the museum in regard to the proposed 
solar installation. 

• CAO to attend the Museum meeting being held next Thursday 
to make a presentation in regard to the solar panel 
installation. 

 
Regional Community Liaison Committee  

• Meeting was held on September 16, 2017 
• Shannon Maison replacing Edie Thome as new Director. 

Position should be in place for the next meeting on Oct 18, 
2017. 

• BCUC update. No new contracts will be signed until after the 
report is completed by the BCUC, Nov 1, 2017. BC Hydro will 
continue to work with potential contractors to plan, but no 
new money will be committed. 

• Abandoned well sites close to the project. Concerns over 
water quality/ contamination. Not much new information 
offered by Hydro. OGC to be invited to a future meeting to 
provide an update. 

• Peace River Hydro Partners (PRHP), Bob Peaver, gave a 
construction update. Everything is continuing to more forward 
pending the BCUC report. 

• Still considerable discussion regarding PRHP procurement 
policies. Hydro is not involved in the process, no oversight. 

0810-20 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
0540-01 
0230-20 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
0540-01 
6660-20 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 

October 10, 2017 Regular Council Meeting Agenda

6 of 89



 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 

11. 
 

12. 
 

C1 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 

C2 
 
 

C3 
 
 
 
 

C4 
 
 

13. 
 
 

CR1 
 

 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 

Concern over local contractors getting a fair chance to bid on 
projects. All members of the RCLC call for a more transparent 
process.  

• To date, no Hudson's Hope businesses or contractors have 
supplied materials or worked on the project. 

• Still concerns over local hire as well. Do the tracking numbers 
accurate reflect what's really going on at the work site? 

•  Personally invited Dan Davies to visit Hudson's Hope and 
discuss our issues and concerns. 

BYLAWS: 
 
CORRESPONDENCE: 
 
Wildfire Grant Program Meeting 

• The Town of Smither’s Council is seeking a meeting at UBCM 
to discuss this proposal. 

• Need to ensure that the Ministry takes ownership of wildfire 
protection 

• Would require capacity to meet the requirements set out. 
• Director of Protective Services to send letter of support to 

Smithers. 
•  

UBCM Newsletter  
For Information 
 
Airport Privatization 

• The Airport Society has not had a meeting since June. 
• Councillor Gillis will bring correspondence, to October 4th 

meeting, for discussion.  
 
International Day of Older People  
For Information 
 
REPORTS BY MAYOR & COUNCIL ON MEETINGS AND LIAISON 
RESPONSIBILITIES 
 
Mayors Report  

• Municipal Insurance Association of BC Annual General Meeting 
o Councillor Miller is first alternate and will be attending 

the meeting.  
• UBCM 

o Ministry Meeting briefs are being prepared, will 
finalized within the next few days. 

• Meeting with Darin Thompson, BC Hydro 
o Topic 1: Physician 

− Legislation in place for BC, Alberta and 
Manitoba regarding Obligation of Physicians to 
have continuity of care.  Alberta and Manitoba 
are moving away from the policy. 

− This means that the physician must ensure that 
their patients have access to care.   

− This is an issue for single physician clinics  
− Mayor Johansson to include issue in brief to 

Ministry of Health.  Will also forward to 
Northern Health. 

 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
1855-03-20 
7340-00 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
0400-01 
 
 
8400-01 
 
 
 
 
0220-01 
 
 
 
 
 
 
0230-01 
 
 
0400-01 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 

October 10, 2017 Regular Council Meeting Agenda

7 of 89



 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 

14. 
 

15. 
 

16. 
 

17. 
 

o Topic 2: Telus 
− Residents of Hudson’s Hope received 

notification from Telus of changes coming to 
their home phone lines. 

− Lynx Creek area to be converted to home cell 
service; Hudson’s Hope town center including 
Jamieson subdivision and Thompson subdivision 
will convert to fibre lines. 

− Concern voiced in regard to loss of 911 service 
when extended power outages; cell tower has 
minimal back-up power available. 

− Mayor Johansson to discuss at September 21st 
meeting with the General Manager of Telus. 

• Economic Development 
o Horticulture Study will be finalized on September 20th. 

− Peace River Regional District will present to 
Ministry of Agriculture at UBCM. 

o Coal Licence Referral 
− Mayor Johansson has opened communications 

with P. Burn Resources Ltd. 
• Meeting with Ministry of Transportation (MOTi) 

o Discussed the crosswalk at the post-office, Ardill Ranch 
washout, and Beryl Prairie culvert.  

− Mayor Johansson voiced the concern of 
potential overflow backup due to the new larger 
culvert flowing into MOTi’s smaller culverts. 

o Meeting was to discuss the community in general and 
for the new members of the Ministry to gather 
background information. 

o Safety Officer to write letter to Ministry regarding: 
− The need for a warning light at the intersection 

of Beattie drive and Fredette Ave. 
− The need for crosswalk on all four sides of 

intersection by the Post office- 2 crosswalks 
across Canyon Drive, 1 crosswalk across Beattie 
Drive and 1 crosswalk across Learmonth Street.  
Should be pedestrian triggered crosswalks. 

o Members of the community are wondering why road 
lines were not painted on Canyon Drive-this is a 
decision made by MOTi. 

 
 

OLD BUSINESS: 
 
NEW BUSINESS: 
 
PUBLIC INQUIRIES: 
 
ADJOURNMENT: 
RESOLUTION NO.183/17  
M/S Councillors Miller/Beam 
That 
“The meeting move into In-Camera.” 
CARRIED 
Meeting recessed at 7:27pm 

 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
6750-01 
 
 
 
 
 
 
0400-20 
 

October 10, 2017 Regular Council Meeting Agenda

8 of 89



Mayor Johansson declared the meeting adjourned at 8:57pm 

DIARY       Diarized 
Conventions/Conferences/Holidays 
Beryl Prairie Septic Field      07/25/16 
Grant Writer Program Sponsorship-September      04/10/17 
Water and Tax Rates comparison      06/26/17 
NDIT Community Halls and Recreation Facilities Program- 
-to be brought forward at Strategic Planning Meeting  08/14/17 

Certified Correct: 

_______________________              _______________________ 
Corporate Officer/Tammy McKeown     Chair/Mayor Gwen Johansson 

October 10, 2017 Regular Council Meeting Agenda

9 of 89



THE DISTRICT OF HUDSON’S HOPE 
 
REPORT TO:   MAYOR JOHANSSON and COUNCIL  
 
SUBJECT:  ACTION and other UPDATES 
 
DATE:  October 10, 2017 
 
FROM:  Tom Matus, CAO   
 
Staff Anticipated Travel: 
CO: MATI Community Planning – West Kelowna      October 1st – 6th  
CO: 2017 Clerks & Corporate Officers Forum, Victoria      October 11th – 13th;  
CO: EMRG 1331 & 1332 Courses, Prince George      October 24th – 29th.  
 
DPS:  Fire Investigation – NFPA 1033,      October 16th – 20th  
John V:  Fire Investigation – NFPA 1033       October 16th – 20th  
 
Johanna: MAIS Users Conference, Vancouver      November 9th – 10th  
Rhonda: MAIS Users Conference, Vancouver      November 9th – 10th  
 
OA1: 2017 Safety Committee Conference, Langley      November 15th – 16th  
 
SBO:  BCMS General Meeting, Kelowna       October 16th  
SBO: 2017 Safety Committee Conference, Langley      November 15th – 16th  
 
DPW: 
Marcel: BCWWA Wastewater Collection Course, Kelowna     December 4th – 8th  
Kevin: BCWWA Water Distribution Course, Kelown      December 4th – 8th 
 
Valve Replacement Project Report 
DPW Staff had requested amending the needed valves from 14 valves to 16 valves due to the Library location requiring 
three valves as opposed to one valve.  Its since been determined that 2 curb stops are required as opposed to two valves.  
Hence we have reduced the total number of required valves to 14 from 16. 
  
Valve locations:     Project Status: 
 
4 Kyllo and Beattie   to be deferred until next year 
4 Water Treatment Plant:   valve install complete, paving to do. 
3 Fredette & Montieth streets:  valve install complete, paving to do.  There was an extra valve included 
1 Holland & Beattie Drive St. 
1 Dudley Drive & McDougal:  valve install complete, paving to do – was not initially scheduled. 
 
Valve and fire hydrant locations: 
 
1@ Jones Crescent; 
1@ Library on Dudley Drive  valve install complete, paving to do. 
1@ Bach residence on Dudley Drive  valve install complete, paving to do. 
  
Total:  14 valves, 3 fire hydrants. 
 
This project cost more than the estimates due to issues found when valves were dug up and exposed i.e. digs were at least 
twice the size thus the costs were more than they were budgeted for.  The four valves at the WTP was especially challenging.  

October 10, 2017 Regular Council Meeting Agenda

10 of 89

clerk
Typewritten Text
SR1



LNB has provided a variance explanation report.  We are staying within the 2017 Capital budget amount though we are 
short two valve replacements overall.  We have replaced 12 valves and three fire hydrants within the $160,000 budget; four 
remaining to do next year (note we completed two valve replacements that were not included in the original project so the 
total came to 16 instead of 14 valve replacements.   The original Omicron/LNB estimate was $147,000.00 for 14 valves and 
three fire hydrants. 
 
MoTI had issued a permit that was far more demanding than the permit that was issued to us last year, and that permit 
caused tentativeness in scheduling the Kyllo St. & Highway 29 for completion this year. 
  
Wastewater Facility Upgrade 
 
On a separate report. 
 
Atkinson Subdivision 
 
On a separate report. 
 
Solar Array 
 
On a separate report. 
 
Water Sewer Rates 
As noted at previous meetings: the “Wtr & Swr Rates Review” Excel file has been provided to Council for it’s perusal and 
action. 
 
Pool Turf 
90% finished.  Short material which was ordered on September 28th – to install remainder this fall. 
 
Asphalting: 
Dudley Drive to be completed week of October 18th.  We needed to do curbs along Dudley Drive, apparently the previous 
Foreman had requested this and to pay this in the 2018 fiscal year, this curb work is not included in the asphalting.  Though 
this curb work does include the replacement of curbs dug up to replace the valve replacements, as well, as the other original 
curb work which was discussed with the District Foreman and District Supervisor. 
 
Road Use Agreements/Road Haul Permits 
I have compiled some good information from Alberta in the form of a Road Use Agreement (RUA) which the County of 
Leduc uses, and informative documents.  I am going to edit/amend the RUA for our use and check with the Acts to ensure 
we have the authority to implement such road/hauling agreements on District of Hudson's Hope owned road right of ways.  
Should have either a report or request for decision for the next Regular Council meeting.  
 
Director of Public Works Position 
Positon was re advertised and closed on September 22nd.  To interview four candidates the week of October 23rd. 
 
Grant Writing 
We pay $10,500 to the NPEDC and are returned $8,000 if the total amount of annual grant applications submitted is 
$200,000 or more. 
 
One idea, contracting a grant writer whereby we pay the grant writer a fee only on successful grant applications.  We 
could pay a percentage fee of the amount of the grant up to a maximum fee.   We could work on the percentage amount 
and maximum fee in relation to the grant amount.   
 
Or the PRRD could create a position for a Grant Writer (or two) and all the municipalities in the PRRD share the cost of 
this position, similar to the Building Inspector position. 

October 10, 2017 Regular Council Meeting Agenda

11 of 89



 
PRGT TUPs - ILOCs 
Prince Rupert Gas Transmission temporary use permits have been cancelled and Irrevocable Letter of Credit has been 
returned to them. 
 
Tax Sale 
Two properties went up for tax sale: 
 
One in Jamieson subdivision was auctioned and sold; the other was retained by the District of Hudson's Hope through 
default.  A report is included in the agenda package. 
 
 
 
 
____________________ 
Tom Matus, CAO 

October 10, 2017 Regular Council Meeting Agenda

12 of 89



s:/forms/construction/progress report weekly 

 

WEEKLY PROGRESS 
REPORT 

JOB NO.:  0664.0039.03 

PROJECT: Wastewater Treatment Plant 

Upgrades 

WEEK ENDING: September 15, 2017 

LOCATION: Hudson’s Hope, BC COMPLETION DATE: November 1, 2017 

OWNER: District of Hudson’s Hope CONTRACTOR: Bear Mountain Construction 

WEATHER: Sunny, 12°C 

ENGINEERING:  (CLIENT DIRECTIVES, DESIGN CHANGES, TESTS, INSTRUCTIONS, ETC.) 

 

CONTRACTOR:  (INCLUDE MEN & EQUIPMENT, WORK PERFORMED, AREAS OF WORK, ETC.) 

Workers: 10 

Equipment: 2 Excavators, rock truck, bulldozer, dump truck, remote control sheep’s foot packer 

Stainless steel pipes and the sump pipe for the building were installed in order to prepare for the building foundation.  

No work was completed in the rapid infiltration basins. The corners of Cell #4 were graded, with one remaining to be 

completed. Approximately 2 lifts remain on the berm.  

Excavation started in Cell #1 for material for the remainder of Cell #4 and the rapid infiltration basin berms.  

Piping between manhole S2 and S3 is continuing. 

GENERAL COMMENTS:  (DISCUSS PROGRESS, QUALITY OF WORK, DISCUSSIONS, MEETINGS, ETC.) 

The two stainless steel pipes installed for the air header (stubs for through the foundation) were not the correct 
thickness. Further, the weld was not sufficiently passivated prior to installation. These pipes were being removed and 

replaced with the correct wall thickness (Schedule 40) and properly treated welds.  

Discussions over the week have included stainless steel piping lengths (for aeration header), building positioning, and 

submittals.  

CHANGE DIRECTIVE:  (GIVE DETAIL OF EXTRA WORK AUTHORIZED) 

None 

 

BUDGET SUMMARY: 

Original Contract Value                 $2,426,745.00 

Contingency in Original Contract $100,000 

Changes to Contract Value $0.00 

Total Expected Contract Costs (with 
contingency) 

$2,426,745.00 

Payments  $863,064.63 

Amount Remaining to be Paid $1,463,680.37 

The August claim from the Contractor was provided to the District this week.  

UPCOMING WORK: 

Next week the contractor will be continuing excavation of Cell #1 and continuing to complete sanitary PVC piping along the 
northeastern berms of Cell 1, and 2.  
 

 

DISTRIBUTION: Tom Matus, District of Hudson’s Hope DATE: 2017-09-14 

 Eric Sears, Urban Systems  Kimberly Zackodnik 

   USL FIELD REPRESENTATIVE 

    

    

     

October 10, 2017 Regular Council Meeting Agenda

13 of 89

clerk
Typewritten Text
SR2



s:/forms/construction/progress report weekly 

  

  

 

October 10, 2017 Regular Council Meeting Agenda

14 of 89



Project: Hudson’s Hope Atkinson Subdivision                                
PD:  Korey Roberts
Date: Sep 15, 2017                                                                                                                                                                                             
Current Week – Tenders/Pricing

Price of $850/lot (~$23k total) has been submitted for insulation of the sanitary lot services; this includes 2” insulation to 1m inside the property line. A decision needs to

be made by tomorrow, Tuesday September 19th, before shallow utilities progress too far.

Current – Construction Activities

Continue hauling gravel to boulevards
Layout final base for curbs
Continue installation of 4 way valve on Dudley drive
Install caution tape above buried Hydro electrical/ Telus
Continue Installing conduit to lamp standard bases
Define final grade for curb installation
Continue backfill of lighting conduit
Continue resetting string for curb work
The chlorine test 24 hours apart showed sufficient chlorine in the system. Our next step is to flush the line clear of chlorine and take a sample to the lab for
bacterial test.

 
Upcoming Tenders
 

 

Next Week – Construction Activities

Install curbs
Layout final crush for black top
Excavate across Dudley drive for Hydro/Telus crossing
Continue installing shallow utilities (conduit and boxes)

 
       Consultants:

Northern Geo to be required on September 19th for concrete testing of curbs
Pending Issues (Site, City, Neighbours, Etc.)

Team was on site to review lot/road grade differences, which approach 1m in some areas.  Omicron will work with the contractor and consultant to provide
options/pricing to smooth out the grade in order to provide marketable lots.

UPDATE: Lot grading option has been prepared; pricing is being finalized based on material availability.  Isometric drawings will be provided once the grading concept
is approved

The delay in issuance of utility IFC’s (Hydro, Telus) has delayed shallow utility and associated road preparation (sub-base could not commence until crossing locations were
finalized).  This delay has pushed total completion from 15-Sept to 6-Oct
Inclement weather has delayed curb install (targeting Friday 22-Sept)
The civil contractor, LNB, is claiming an increase in fill quantity required to achieve subgrade elevation (estimated 3,000m3 vs. 1,420m3 allowed for in the contract). 

UPDATE: LNB has submitted a price of $22k for loading/hauling/placing this extra material.  The civil consultant, L&M, is comparing LNB’s topographic survey with
the one completed originally to verify the discrepancy in quantity.

The civil contractor, LNB, is claiming an additional 30m of waterline is required for the Arena Road watermain loop (design showed connection point at Dudley Drive, as-
built location is ~30m north of this location).

UPDATE: LNB is forecasting a cost of $6k for the extra 30m of waterline
   

Personnel on Site

From: Tom Matus
To: Caroline Beam; Dave Heiberg; Gwen Johansson (gjohan@pris.ca); Heather Middleton; Kelly Miller; Gwen Johansson; Nicole Gilliss; Travous Quibell
Cc: Tammy McKeown
Subject: FW: HH Atkinson: Construction Progress Update
Date: Monday, September 18, 2017 1:25:15 PM
Attachments: HH Atkinson - Commitment Capture - 18Sept.pdf

Hello All,
 
Attached please find the latest update from Omicron re the Atkinson SD.  This report will be included in the Council meeting agenda.
 
Regards,
 
Tom Matus, CAO
 

From: Alex Girdner [mailto:AGirdner@omicronaec.com] 
Sent: September 18, 2017 1:07 PM
To: Tom Matus <cao@hudsonshope.ca>
Cc: Thompson, Darin <Darin.Thompson@bchydro.com>; Dave Heiberg <dave@hudsonshope.ca>; Korey Roberts <KRoberts@omicronaec.com>; Jim Riley <JRiley@omicronaec.com>;
Atai Rabbi <ARabbi@omicronaec.com>
Subject: HH Atkinson: Construction Progress Update
 
Hi Tom,
 

Please see below and attached the weekly report for the Atkinson Subdivision and Servicing project, week ending September 15th, 2017. 
 
Note that I’ve attached the updated commitment capture, which includes forecasts for the lot service insulation and additional fill for lot grading.
 
Let me know if you have any question or concerns.
 
Thanks,
 
 

October 10, 2017 Regular Council Meeting Agenda

15 of 89

mailto:cao@hudsonshope.ca
mailto:caroline@hudsonshope.ca
mailto:dave@hudsonshope.ca
mailto:gjohan@pris.ca
mailto:heather@hudsonshope.ca
mailto:kelly@hudsonshope.ca
mailto:mayor@hudsonshope.ca
mailto:nicole@hudsonshope.ca
mailto:travous@hudsonshope.ca
mailto:clerk@hudsonshope.ca



20-16-032 Atkinson Subdivision and Servicing Works
Owner: District of Hudson's Hope


05


Contractor: Omicron Construction Management Ltd


Budget Cash 


Allowance


Previously 


Committed  Committed This Period 


Total Commitment to 


date Forecast to Complete Forecast Final Cost % Complete


Projected Variance 


(Budget less Forecast 


Final Cost)


Cash Allowances


1 Civil $ 1,235,978.00 $ 1,368,064.00 $ 1,368,064.00 $ 22,435.00 $ 1,390,499.00  - $ (154,521.00)


2 Paving and Curbs $ 224,450.00 $ 166,961.00 $ 166,961.00 $ 10,000.00 $ 176,961.00  - $ 47,489.00


3 Landscaping $ 50,000.00 $ 18,900.00 $ 18,900.00 $ 15,000.00 $ 33,900.00  - $ 16,100.00


Subtotal Cash Allowances $ 1,510,428.00  - $ 1,553,925.00 $ 1,553,925.00 $ 47,435.00 $ 1,601,360.00  - $ (90,932.00)


General Conditions & Fee


0 General Conditions $ 170,000.00 $ 170,000.00 $ 170,000.00  - $ 170,000.00  -  -


0 Contractor Insurance $ 4,000.00  - $ 4,000.00 $ 4,000.00  -  -


Subtotal General Conditions $ 174,000.00  - $ 170,000.00 $ 170,000.00 $ 4,000.00 $ 174,000.00  -  -


Subtotal CA's & GC's $ 1,684,428.00  - $ 1,723,925.00 $ 1,723,925.00 $ 51,435.00 $ 1,775,360.00  - $ (90,932.00)


CM Fee (4%) $ 67,377.00  - $ 68,957.00 $ 68,957.00 $ 2,057.40 $ 71,014.40  - $ (3,637.28)


Subtotal GCs, CAs & Fee $ 1,751,805.00  - $ 1,792,882.00 $ 1,792,882.00 $ 53,492.40 $ 1,846,374.40  - $ (94,569.28)


Contract Amount $ 1,751,805.00  - $ 1,792,882.00 $ 1,792,882.00 $ 53,492.40 $ 1,846,374.40  - $ (94,569.28)


Owner Approved Changes


1 Service to Alexander Property $ 5,500.00 $ 5,500.00 $ 5,500.00  - $ (5,500.00)


2 Waterline Extension to Dudley $ 18,480.00 $ 18,480.00 $ 18,480.00  - $ (18,480.00)
3 New 6" line at existing curb stops $ 25,000.00 $ 25,000.00 $ 25,000.00  - $ (25,000.00)
4 Credit for bedding materials $ (10,014.00) $ (10,014.00) $ (10,014.00)  - $ 10,014.00


5 Alternate hydrants (Terminal City) $ 1,701.00 $ 1,701.00 $ 1,701.00  - $ (1,701.00)
6 Loop watermain to Arena Road $ 20,000.00 $ 20,000.00 $ 20,000.00  - $ (20,000.00)


7 Waterline extension (30m add)  - $ 6,000.00 $ 6,000.00  - $ (6,000.00)
8 Additional fill for road subgrade  - $ 22,022.00 $ 22,022.00  - $ (22,022.00)
9 Sani lot service insulation  - $ 22,950.00 $ 22,950.00  - $ (22,950.00)


10 Lot fill/grading  - $ 195,000.00 $ 195,000.00  - $ (195,000.00)


CM Fee on OAC's (4%)  - $ 2,426.68  - $ 2,426.68 $ 9,838.88 $ 12,265.56  - $ (12,265.56)


Owner Approved Changes  - $ 63,093.68  - $ 63,093.68 $ 255,810.88 $ 318,904.56  - $ (318,904.56)


Contingency Allowance (15%) $ 303,195.00


Total Contract Amount $ 2,055,000.00 $ 63,093.68 $ 1,792,882.00 $ 1,855,975.68 $ 309,303.28 $ 2,165,278.96  - $ (413,473.84)


Cash Allowances - Owner Costs


1 Utilities Allowance (BCH, etc.) $ 100,000.00  - $ 100,000.00  -  -


2 Design Contract Admin $ 45,000.00  - $ 70,600.00 $ 115,600.00  - $ (70,600.00)


3 Pavement base - crushing costs  -  - $ 5,760.00 $ 5,760.00  - $ (5,760.00)


Description


Page 1 of 2







20-16-032 Atkinson Subdivision and Servicing Works
Owner: District of Hudson's Hope


05


Contractor: Omicron Construction Management Ltd


Budget Cash 


Allowance


Previously 


Committed  Committed This Period 


Total Commitment to 


date Forecast to Complete Forecast Final Cost % Complete


Projected Variance 


(Budget less Forecast 


Final Cost)Description


4 Pit sand supply  -  - $ 10,000.00 $ 10,000.00  - $ (10,000.00)


5 Sidewalk base crushing (estimated)  -  -  -  -  -  -


Subtotal GCs, CAs & Fee $ 145,000.00  -  -  - $ 86,360.00 $ 231,360.00  - $ (86,360.00)


Total Project Cost (Budget) $ 2,200,000.00 $ 63,093.68 $ 1,792,882.00 $ 1,855,975.68 $ 395,663.28 $ 2,396,638.96  - $ (196,638.96)


Page 2 of 2







 Sub-contractors  on site:
LNB Construction – 8
P&L venture trucking – 1

     
Safety:

Zero lost time injuries reported on site to date.
0 First Aids this week.
Install safety signage as required.
SWP, pre job hazard assessments collected from contractors and are reviewed by Omicron prior to start of work
Twice daily safety inspections being completed every day.

Project – Wide Issues (Beyond Construction)

 
N/A

 
Financial Summary
 

Total commitment to date: $1,855,976
Forecast Final Cost: $2,396,639

Note this value includes owner costs and forecasted costs for lot service insulation and grading; see attached updated commitment capture for discussion
Projected Variance from Atkinson Funds (including lot sale): $196,639

 
Schedule Summary
 

Shallow Utilities: complete September 30th – October 6th

District Valve Replacement (separate contract): Complete September 20th

Install curbs – September 22nd (delayed from 18-Sept due to inclement weather)

Crush and compaction testing – September 18th – 23rd

Paving – September 25th

Landscaping, Fortis – 1st week of October
 
 
Alex Girdner
Construction Manager
OMICRON
D +1 604 632 1153  M +1 778 389 3205  E AGirdner@omicronaec.com

Fifth Floor Three Bentall Centre 
595 Burrard Street
PO Box 49369 Vancouver BC V7X 1L4 Canada
T +1 604 632 3350 / +1 877 632 3350 F +1 604 632 3351  W www.omicronaec.com

This email and any files transmitted with it are confidential and intended solely for the use of the individual or entity to whom they are addressed. If you have received this email
in error please notify the sender. Please note that any views or opinions presented in this email are solely those of the author and do not necessarily represent those of
Omicron. Please check this email and any attachments for the presence of viruses. Omicron accepts no liability for any damage caused by any virus transmitted by this email.

 

October 10, 2017 Regular Council Meeting Agenda

16 of 89

tel:+1%20604%20632%201153
tel:+1%20778%20389%203205
mailto:AGirdner@omicronaec.com
https://www.google.ca/maps/place/595+Burrard+St,+Vancouver,+BC+V7X,+Canada/@49.2862189,-123.1197805,17z/data=!3m1!4b1!4m2!3m1!1s0x5486718227ddb347:0x9f24e2c2faae0a85
https://www.google.ca/maps/place/595+Burrard+St,+Vancouver,+BC+V7X,+Canada/@49.2862189,-123.1197805,17z/data=!3m1!4b1!4m2!3m1!1s0x5486718227ddb347:0x9f24e2c2faae0a85
https://www.google.ca/maps/place/595+Burrard+St,+Vancouver,+BC+V7X,+Canada/@49.2862189,-123.1197805,17z/data=!3m1!4b1!4m2!3m1!1s0x5486718227ddb347:0x9f24e2c2faae0a85
tel:+1%20604%20632%203350
tel:+1%20877%20632%203350
tel:+1%20604%20632%203351
http://www.omicronaec.com/
http://www.omicronaec.com/


20-16-032 Atkinson Subdivision and Servicing Works
Owner: District of Hudson's Hope

05

Contractor: Omicron Construction Management Ltd

Budget Cash 

Allowance

Previously 

Committed  Committed This Period 

Total Commitment to 

date Forecast to Complete Forecast Final Cost % Complete

Projected Variance 

(Budget less Forecast 

Final Cost)

Cash Allowances

1 Civil $ 1,235,978.00 $ 1,368,064.00 $ 1,368,064.00 $ 22,435.00 $ 1,390,499.00  - $ (154,521.00)

2 Paving and Curbs $ 224,450.00 $ 166,961.00 $ 166,961.00 $ 10,000.00 $ 176,961.00  - $ 47,489.00

3 Landscaping $ 50,000.00 $ 18,900.00 $ 18,900.00 $ 15,000.00 $ 33,900.00  - $ 16,100.00

Subtotal Cash Allowances $ 1,510,428.00  - $ 1,553,925.00 $ 1,553,925.00 $ 47,435.00 $ 1,601,360.00  - $ (90,932.00)

General Conditions & Fee

0 General Conditions $ 170,000.00 $ 170,000.00 $ 170,000.00  - $ 170,000.00  -  -

0 Contractor Insurance $ 4,000.00  - $ 4,000.00 $ 4,000.00  -  -

Subtotal General Conditions $ 174,000.00  - $ 170,000.00 $ 170,000.00 $ 4,000.00 $ 174,000.00  -  -

Subtotal CA's & GC's $ 1,684,428.00  - $ 1,723,925.00 $ 1,723,925.00 $ 51,435.00 $ 1,775,360.00  - $ (90,932.00)

CM Fee (4%) $ 67,377.00  - $ 68,957.00 $ 68,957.00 $ 2,057.40 $ 71,014.40  - $ (3,637.28)

Subtotal GCs, CAs & Fee $ 1,751,805.00  - $ 1,792,882.00 $ 1,792,882.00 $ 53,492.40 $ 1,846,374.40  - $ (94,569.28)

Contract Amount $ 1,751,805.00  - $ 1,792,882.00 $ 1,792,882.00 $ 53,492.40 $ 1,846,374.40  - $ (94,569.28)

Owner Approved Changes

1 Service to Alexander Property $ 5,500.00 $ 5,500.00 $ 5,500.00  - $ (5,500.00)

2 Waterline Extension to Dudley $ 18,480.00 $ 18,480.00 $ 18,480.00  - $ (18,480.00)
3 New 6" line at existing curb stops $ 25,000.00 $ 25,000.00 $ 25,000.00  - $ (25,000.00)
4 Credit for bedding materials $ (10,014.00) $ (10,014.00) $ (10,014.00)  - $ 10,014.00

5 Alternate hydrants (Terminal City) $ 1,701.00 $ 1,701.00 $ 1,701.00  - $ (1,701.00)
6 Loop watermain to Arena Road $ 20,000.00 $ 20,000.00 $ 20,000.00  - $ (20,000.00)

7 Waterline extension (30m add)  - $ 6,000.00 $ 6,000.00  - $ (6,000.00)
8 Additional fill for road subgrade  - $ 22,022.00 $ 22,022.00  - $ (22,022.00)
9 Sani lot service insulation  - $ 22,950.00 $ 22,950.00  - $ (22,950.00)

10 Lot fill/grading  - $ 195,000.00 $ 195,000.00  - $ (195,000.00)

CM Fee on OAC's (4%)  - $ 2,426.68  - $ 2,426.68 $ 9,838.88 $ 12,265.56  - $ (12,265.56)

Owner Approved Changes  - $ 63,093.68  - $ 63,093.68 $ 255,810.88 $ 318,904.56  - $ (318,904.56)

Contingency Allowance (15%) $ 303,195.00

Total Contract Amount $ 2,055,000.00 $ 63,093.68 $ 1,792,882.00 $ 1,855,975.68 $ 309,303.28 $ 2,165,278.96  - $ (413,473.84)

Cash Allowances - Owner Costs

1 Utilities Allowance (BCH, etc.) $ 100,000.00  - $ 100,000.00  -  -

2 Design Contract Admin $ 45,000.00  - $ 70,600.00 $ 115,600.00  - $ (70,600.00)

3 Pavement base - crushing costs  -  - $ 5,760.00 $ 5,760.00  - $ (5,760.00)

Description

Page 1 of 2

October 10, 2017 Regular Council Meeting Agenda

17 of 89



20-16-032 Atkinson Subdivision and Servicing Works
Owner: District of Hudson's Hope

05

Contractor: Omicron Construction Management Ltd

Budget Cash 

Allowance

Previously 

Committed  Committed This Period 

Total Commitment to 

date Forecast to Complete Forecast Final Cost % Complete

Projected Variance 

(Budget less Forecast 

Final Cost)Description

4 Pit sand supply  -  - $ 10,000.00 $ 10,000.00  - $ (10,000.00)

5 Sidewalk base crushing (estimated)  -  -  -  -  -  -

Subtotal GCs, CAs & Fee $ 145,000.00  -  -  - $ 86,360.00 $ 231,360.00  - $ (86,360.00)

Total Project Cost (Budget) $ 2,200,000.00 $ 63,093.68 $ 1,792,882.00 $ 1,855,975.68 $ 395,663.28 $ 2,396,638.96  - $ (196,638.96)

Page 2 of 2

October 10, 2017 Regular Council Meeting Agenda

18 of 89



October 10, 2017 Regular Council Meeting Agenda

19 of 89



October 10, 2017 Regular Council Meeting Agenda

20 of 89



October 10, 2017 Regular Council Meeting Agenda

21 of 89



October 10, 2017 Regular Council Meeting Agenda

22 of 89



 

WEEKLY PROGRESS 
REPORT 

JOB NO.:  0664.0039.03 

PROJECT: Wastewater Treatment Plant 

Upgrades 

WEEK ENDING: September 22, 2017 

LOCATION: Hudson’s Hope, BC COMPLETION DATE: November 1, 2017 

OWNER: District of Hudson’s Hope CONTRACTOR: Bear Mountain Construction 

WEATHER: Cloudy, 6oC 

ENGINEERING:  (CLIENT DIRECTIVES, DESIGN CHANGES, TESTS, INSTRUCTIONS, ETC.) 

 

CONTRACTOR:  (INCLUDE MEN & EQUIPMENT, WORK PERFORMED, AREAS OF WORK, ETC.) 

Workers: 9 

Equipment: 2 Excavators, bulldozer, telehandler, rock truck, steel drum roller 

Contractor has completed the last lift of subgrade on RI basins and Cell#4 (6” lift of road base materials remaining).  The 

sand has been removed from 2/3 of cells, with RI#2 remaining. 

Contractor is starting on berms in Cell#1.  The gravity sewer pipe trenches are completed and backfilled. 

The stainless steel pipes for the lower building penetrations were replaced, and they started forming the foundations of 

the building.  

 

GENERAL COMMENTS:  (DISCUSS PROGRESS, QUALITY OF WORK, DISCUSSIONS, MEETINGS, ETC.) 

Golder was onsite to complete proof rolls of berms and were satisfied with the results.  The south side of Cell#4 is a little 
soft but will be recompacted when it is re-excavated for the removal of the existing discharge.  The contractor located the 

existing force main into Cell #2 for future tie in and removal. 

 

CHANGE DIRECTIVE:  (GIVE DETAIL OF EXTRA WORK AUTHORIZED) 

None 

 

BUDGET:   

No changes from previous week. 

 

UPCOMING WORK: 

Trenching and installing new forcemain.  Cell #1 berms will be built using trench material. 

 

 

 

DISTRIBUTION: Tom Matus, District of Hudson’s Hope DATE: 2017-09-21 

 Eric Sears, Urban Systems  Josh Andrews 

 Kimberly Zackodnick, Urban Systems  USL FIELD REPRESENTATIVE 

    

    

     

October 10, 2017 Regular Council Meeting Agenda

23 of 89



 

 

 

 

 

October 10, 2017 Regular Council Meeting Agenda

24 of 89



 

WEEKLY PROGRESS 
REPORT 

JOB NO.:  0664.0039.03 

PROJECT: Wastewater Treatment Plant 

Upgrades 

WEEK ENDING: September 28, 2017 

LOCATION: Hudson’s Hope, BC COMPLETION DATE: November 1, 2017 

OWNER: District of Hudson’s Hope CONTRACTOR: Bear Mountain Construction 

WEATHER: Sunny, 22oC 

ENGINEERING:  (CLIENT DIRECTIVES, DESIGN CHANGES, TESTS, INSTRUCTIONS, ETC.) 

 

CONTRACTOR:  (INCLUDE MEN & EQUIPMENT, WORK PERFORMED, AREAS OF WORK, ETC.) 

Workers: 8 

Equipment: 2 Excavators, rock truck, 2 steel drum rollers, remote control sheepsfoot, bulldozer, telehandler 

Contractor is continuing excavation of Cell 1 which will continue into next week.  The trenching for the HDPE forcemain 

also continues.  Pipe fusing and installation will begin on Sunday.  

Cell 4 and RIs were completed last week although the 6 inches of crushed rock cover remain to be placed. 

The concrete slab for the blower building was placed on Wednesday. 

 

GENERAL COMMENTS:  (DISCUSS PROGRESS, QUALITY OF WORK, DISCUSSIONS, MEETINGS, ETC.) 

Golder had identified several soft spots in the backfilling of the sanitary line, those spots have been excavated, backfilled 

and compacted. The HDPE fusers will be on site on Sunday.  The line will be installed early next week and pressure 

testing for the forcemain and the completed sanitary line will be arranged.  

 

CHANGE DIRECTIVE:  (GIVE DETAIL OF EXTRA WORK AUTHORIZED) 

None 

 

BUDGET:   

No changes from previous week. 

 

UPCOMING WORK: 

Continue to excavate Cell 1 and complete the installation of the forcemain and backfill.  The installation of the pond liners 
is expected to take place in 2 weeks. 

 

 

DISTRIBUTION: Tom Matus, District of Hudson’s Hope DATE: 2017-09-28 

 Eric Sears, Urban Systems  Josh Andrews 

 Kimberly Zackodnick, Urban Systems  USL FIELD REPRESENTATIVE 

    

    

     

October 10, 2017 Regular Council Meeting Agenda

25 of 89



  

  

 

October 10, 2017 Regular Council Meeting Agenda

26 of 89



REQUEST FOR DECISION 
 

 
BACKGROUND:  
 
Upon request of the driver examiner, I accompanied her on a drive through a few of the streets 
in the District. It was noticed that there are many discrepancies with the speed limits within the 
District. The District has several areas where the speed limits change from street to street, and 
even on the same street. 
DISCUSSION: 
 
For the safety of the general public, especially children playing. Also to possibly alleviate any 
animal strikes from vehicles I believe that there is a benefit to changing the speed limit from 50 
km/h to 30 km/h in all residential areas.  
 
As the District is becoming a leader in the energy savings in the Province, we should also lead 
in our efforts to protect the children and every resident within our community. 
 
By changing the speed limits to a lower speed there is also the possible reduction is emissions 
from the vehicles travelling through the District streets, therefore lowering the damage to the 
ozone layer. 
 
 
 
BUDGET: 
 
After an inventory of the required signage is completed it would be possible to calculate all 
associated costs for replacing the 50 km/h signs with 30 km/h signs. The allocation of two 
Public Works staff to perform signage changeover would be the only other costs associated. 
 
RECOMMENDATION / RESOLUTION: 
 
This report is for information purposes. 

 
 
 
 
__________________________ 
Wallace Roach 
Safety and Bylaw Enforcement Officer 

RFD#:         Date:   September 19, 2017 
Meeting#:   Originator: Wallace Roach 
RFD TITLE:  Speed Limit Changes 

October 10, 2017 Regular Council Meeting Agenda

27 of 89

clerk
Typewritten Text
SR3



REQUEST FOR DECISION 
 

 
BACKGROUND:  
 
The intersection of Canyon Drive and Beattie Drive need proper crosswalks and warning 
devices for the safety of the public. As well, the turn approaching the visitor center from Beattie 
Drive poses a risk to anyone using the crosswalk. Trucks turning onto Osborne Street off 
Canyon Drive pose a significant risk to public safety and therefore needs to be addressed. 

DISCUSSION: 
The following information was sent as UBCM briefing notes to the Ministry regarding the 
installation of crosswalks and warning devices. 
 
September 20, 2017 
 
Ministry of Transportation 
 
RE: INSTALLATION OF CROSSWALKS AND WARNING DEVICES 
 
At the intersection of Beattie Drive and Canyon Drive we request that the Ministry install 
pedestrian controlled traffic lights for the safety of pedestrians crossing.  
 
Presently there are painted crosswalks for pedestrians to cross, but there are no traffic control 
devices to ensure that vehicular traffic stop to allow pedestrians to cross safely. 
 
There are two stop signs coming from Beattie Drive and Learmonth Street but nothing on 
Canyon Drive. 
 
In the early morning hours there is not sufficient lighting to warn vehicular traffic that there is a 
pedestrian crossing the roadway, it is the same in the twilight hours. 
 
With the Site C project work being conducted, a “berm” in the District will be constructed with 
heavy traffic expected. Approximately every six to eight minutes there will be heavy trucks 
carrying rocks (riprap) for the “berm” construction entering the intersection. 
 
https://www.sitecproject.com/sites/default/files/20111014%20Site%20C%20Hudson%27s%20
Hope%20Berm%20Options%20Consultation%20Brief%20-%20Fall%202011.pdf 
 
https://www.sitecproject.com/sites/default/files/Site%20C%20PDC%20Fall%202012%20Displa
y%20Boards.pdf 
 
https://www.ceaa-acee.gc.ca/050/documents_staticpost/63919/85328/Vol4_Appendix_B.pdf 
 

RFD#:         Date:   September 19, 2017 
Meeting#:   Originator: Wallace Roach 
RFD TITLE:  Installation of Crosswalks  and Warning Devices 

October 10, 2017 Regular Council Meeting Agenda

28 of 89

https://www.sitecproject.com/sites/default/files/20111014%20Site%20C%20Hudson%27s%20Hope%20Berm%20Options%20Consultation%20Brief%20-%20Fall%202011.pdf
https://www.sitecproject.com/sites/default/files/20111014%20Site%20C%20Hudson%27s%20Hope%20Berm%20Options%20Consultation%20Brief%20-%20Fall%202011.pdf
https://www.sitecproject.com/sites/default/files/Site%20C%20PDC%20Fall%202012%20Display%20Boards.pdf
https://www.sitecproject.com/sites/default/files/Site%20C%20PDC%20Fall%202012%20Display%20Boards.pdf
https://www.ceaa-acee.gc.ca/050/documents_staticpost/63919/85328/Vol4_Appendix_B.pdf
clerk
Typewritten Text
SR4



The above links illustrate the increase in vehicular traffic, especially heavy truck traffic during 
the construction of the Site C project, including the construction of the berm in Hudson’s Hope. 
This increase in vehicular traffic poses a significant risk to the public who cross at the 
intersection to access the post office on a daily basis, not to mention the employees who walk 
to work at the neighboring businesses.  
 
Below are suggestions for the types of traffic warning devices that could be utilized. 

 

 
Also as traffic approaches Canyon Drive from Beattie Drive there is a crosswalk near the 
Visitor Center that oncoming traffic cannot see until they round the corner, and if there is a 
pedestrian in the crosswalk it poses the risk of the pedestrian being struck by the oncoming 
vehicle.  
 
At this place we wish for the Ministry to install a warning signal that would be triggered by the 
pedestrian that signals to the oncoming traffic that there is someone in the crosswalk. This can 
be done by the pedestrian pressing a cross button and a flashing yellow light erected across 
the roadway a couple of hundred meters prior to where the traffic meets the corner. 
 
Below is a suggestion as to the warning device that could be triggered by a pedestrian 
pressing a button before crossing that could be installed past the corner to give drivers 
sufficient warning of a pedestrian in the crosswalk. 

 
One other area of concern is along Canyon Drive there is an offshoot street named Osborne 
Street. As truck traffic comes down Canyon Drive, from the direction of the Bennet Dam they 
are turning onto Osborne Street. I have received numerous complaints from residents  
regarding the trucks tearing up residents lawns as the street is narrow and the drivers of the 
trucks have a hard time navigating the turn. The reason the trucks turn down Osborne Street is 
to avoid the intersection at Canyon Drive and Beattie Drive.  
 
I request that the Ministry install signage to restrict turning either left or right onto Osborne 
Street from Canyon Drive. We as the District could make this a one way street, but would 
rather just have the Ministry install signage to restrict turning onto Osborne Street. 
 

October 10, 2017 Regular Council Meeting Agenda

29 of 89



https://www.google.ca/maps/place/Osborne+St,+Hudson's+Hope,+BC+V0C/@56.0291893,-
121.9108463,17.48z/data=!4m5!3m4!1s0x538d8ac2ac2eb301:0x6cc4e2db46de31fd!8m2!3d5
6.0295593!4d-121.9124568 
Above is the link to the map illustrating the intersection at Canyon Drive and Beattie Drive. 
Osborne Street coming off of Canyon Drive, and the turn near the Visitor Center along 
Highway 29 (Beattie Drive) where there should be warning lights installed to warn oncoming 
traffic that there is someone using the crosswalk. 

BUDGET: 
All costs should be borne by the Ministry. 
 

RECOMMENDATION / RESOLUTION: 
  
I would like to recommend that this be put to the Ministry for action. 

 
 
 
 
__________________________ 
Wallace Roach 
Safety and Bylaw Enforcement Officer 

October 10, 2017 Regular Council Meeting Agenda

30 of 89

https://www.google.ca/maps/place/Osborne+St,+Hudson's+Hope,+BC+V0C/@56.0291893,-121.9108463,17.48z/data=!4m5!3m4!1s0x538d8ac2ac2eb301:0x6cc4e2db46de31fd!8m2!3d56.0295593!4d-121.9124568
https://www.google.ca/maps/place/Osborne+St,+Hudson's+Hope,+BC+V0C/@56.0291893,-121.9108463,17.48z/data=!4m5!3m4!1s0x538d8ac2ac2eb301:0x6cc4e2db46de31fd!8m2!3d56.0295593!4d-121.9124568
https://www.google.ca/maps/place/Osborne+St,+Hudson's+Hope,+BC+V0C/@56.0291893,-121.9108463,17.48z/data=!4m5!3m4!1s0x538d8ac2ac2eb301:0x6cc4e2db46de31fd!8m2!3d56.0295593!4d-121.9124568


October 10, 2017 Regular Council Meeting Agenda

31 of 89

clerk
Typewritten Text
SR5



October 10, 2017 Regular Council Meeting Agenda

32 of 89



October 10, 2017 Regular Council Meeting Agenda

33 of 89

clerk
Typewritten Text
SR6



October 10, 2017 Regular Council Meeting Agenda

34 of 89



October 10, 2017 Regular Council Meeting Agenda

35 of 89



October 10, 2017 Regular Council Meeting Agenda

36 of 89

clerk
Typewritten Text
SR7



THE	DISTRICT	OF	HUDSON’S	HOPE	
	
	
REPORT	TO:			 Mayor	and	Council			
	
SUBJECT:	 	 Commemorative	Plaques	
	
DATE:		 	 October	10.	2017	
	
FROM:	 	 Tammy	McKeown,	Corporate	Officer	
	
	
	
THAT:		 “Council	approves	the	purchase	and	installation	of	two	commemorative	

plaques	and	dedication	of	two	trees	in	the	memory	of	past	employees	Eric	
Heiberg	and	Johnny	Reno”		

	
	
ADMINISTRATOR	COMMENTS:	
	
	
	
	
Report	Approved	by:		 _____________________________	
	 	 	 	 Tom	Matus,	CAO	
	
INFORMATION	
	
Jamie	Eastman	has	requested	Council’s	approval	to	order	and	install	two	commemorative	
plaques	and	to	dedicate	two	trees	in	the	memory	of	Johnny	Reno	and	Eric	Heiberg.		Both	
Johnny	and	Eric	were	past	employees	of	the	District	of	Hudson’s	Hope	and	were	beloved	
members	of	the	community.	
	
Jamie	does	not	believe	we	have	any	other	commemorations	in	place,	however,	we	have	had	
plaques	made	up	for	trees	for	anniversaries.	The	install	process	is	not	labour	intensive,	the	
plaque	is	just	put	on	a	stake	and	staked	into	the	ground.	
	
The	cost	of	a	3x5	memorial	plate	is	$20	plus	PST.		There	will	be	a	small	additional	cost	for	
the	mounting	stakes.	
	
	
Report	prepared	by:		__________________________________________	
	 	 											 	Tammy	McKeown,	Corporate	Officer	
	

October 10, 2017 Regular Council Meeting Agenda

37 of 89

clerk
Typewritten Text
SR8



THE DISTRICT OF HUDSON’S HOPE 
 
 
REPORT TO:   Mayor and Council  
 
SUBJECT:  Officer Bylaw No. 891, 2017 
 
DATE:   September 19, 2017 
 
FROM:  Tammy McKeown, Corporate Officer 
 
 
RECOMMENDATION:  
 
THAT:   
 
“Council approve First, Second, and Third readings of “Officer Bylaw No. 891, 2017”. 
 
AND THAT: 
 
“Council repeal Officer Bylaw No. 771, 2009.”  
 
ADMINISTRATOR COMMENTS: 
 
   
Report Approved by:  _____________________________ 
    Tom Matus, CAO 
 
 
INFORMATION: 
 
Upon reviewing Officer Bylaw No. 771. 2009, the Chief Administrative Officer determined 
that a new Bylaw was required to incorporate the new officer positions within the District 
and to update the roles of the existing positions. 
 
Officer Bylaw No. 891, 2017 incorporates the following new positions powers, duties and 
responsibilities: 
 
Corporate Officer:  

• Responsible for corporate administration, whose powers, duties, and functions 
include those set out in Section 148 of the Act. 

 
Bylaw Enforcement/Safety Officer:  

• Appointed under Section 36 of the Police Act of British Columbia 
• Shall have the power to enforce any Bylaw of the district 
• Responsible for bylaw enforcement, building permits and inspections and assisting 

the Administrator with development applications.  
• Responsible for all aspects of safety training, program/ policy development, and 

management systems implementation and maintenance for the District. 

October 10, 2017 Regular Council Meeting Agenda

38 of 89

clerk
Typewritten Text
B1



With the inclusion of these two new Officer positions the following responsibilities have 
been removed from the existing officers: 
 
Administrator: 

• The Administrator is the Corporate Officer, assigned the responsibility of corporate 
administration, whose powers, duties, and functions include those set out in Section 
148 of the Act. 

 
Director of Protective Services: 

• Appointment as a Bylaw Enforcement Officer under Section 36 of the Police Act of the 
Province of British Columbia, and shall have the power to enforce any Bylaw of the 
District 

 
 
 
 
 

 
Report prepared by:  __________________________________________ 
              Tammy McKeown 
 

October 10, 2017 Regular Council Meeting Agenda

39 of 89



DISTRICT OF HUDSON'S HOPE 

Bylaw No. 891 

  

A bylaw to replace Bylaw No. 771 establishing officer positions and set out the administrative 
structure under which the business of the District shall be conducted. 
  
 
WHEREAS under section 146 of the Community Charter the Council must establish officer 
positions in relation to the powers, duties and functions under sections 148 [Corporate Officer] 
and 149 [Financial Officer]; and 
 
WHEREAS under section 146 of the Community Charter the Council may establish other 
officer positions; and 
 
WHEREAS under section 146 of the Community Charter the Council may assign powers, duties 
and functions to its officer positions; 
 
NOW THEREFORE the Council of the District of Hudson's Hope, in an open meeting 
assembled, enacts as follows: 
 

1. This Bylaw shall be cited as the "Officer Bylaw No. 891, 2017". 
 

DEFINITIONS 

2. In this bylaw, unless the context otherwise requires: 

a. " Act " means the Community Charter Act of the Province of British Columbia 

"Administrator" means the Chief Administrative Officer of the District  

"District” means the District of Hudson’s Hope. 

"Council" means the Council of the District of Hudson's Hope. 

b. Words used shall have the same meaning assigned to them by the Community 
Charter Act. 

  

October 10, 2017 Regular Council Meeting Agenda

40 of 89



MUNICIPAL DEPARTMENTS 

3. The business of the District, under the direction of the Chief Administrative Officer with 
and by the authority invested in him/her by Council, shall be conducted by the 
departments hereby established: 

a. Administrative Department 
b. Public Works Department 
c. Protective Services Department 

OFFICER AND DEPARTMENT HEAD POSITIONS 

4. Officers of the District shall be:  

a. Administrator 
b. Director of Public Works 
c. Director of Protective Services 
d. Corporate Officer 
e. Bylaw Enforcement / Safety Officer 

5. Each officer shall be the department head of their respective departments as outlined in            
Section 3 (a), (b), and (C). 

6. Each Officer of the District shall be the person from time to time appointed as such and 
includes the person employed as such on the date of adoption of this bylaw. 

APPOINTMENT, TERMINATION, AND SUSPENSION 

7. Officers shall be appointed by resolution of Council. Appointments to all other positions 
shall be made by the Administrator or his/her designate. 

8. Officers may be terminated in accordance with section 152 of the Act. 

9. Officers may be suspended in accordance with Section 151 of the Act. 

POWERS, DUTIES AND RESPONSIBILITIES OF THE ADMINISTRATOR 

10. The Administrator is the Chief Administrative Officer whose powers, duties, and 
functions include those set out in Section 147 of the Act. 

  

October 10, 2017 Regular Council Meeting Agenda

41 of 89



11. The Administrator is the Financial Officer, assigned the responsibility of financial 
administration, whose powers, duties, and functions include those set out in Section 149 
of the Act. 

12. The Administrator is assigned the responsibility as Collector of Taxes for the District as 
set out in the Act. 

POWERS, DUTIES, AND RESPONSIBILITIES OF THE DIRECTOR OF PUBLIC 
WORKS 

13. The Director of Public works shall be responsible for the District's public works, utilities 
and facilities. 

POWERS, DUTIES AND RESPONSIBILITIES OF THE DIRECTOR OF PROTECTIVE 
SERVICES 

14. The Director of Protective Services is appointed as the Fire Chief, and shall have the 
powers, duties and functions pursuant to the Fire Services Act of the Province of British 
Columbia and the District of Hudson ' s Hope Volunteer Fire Department Establishment 
and Regulations  Bylaw  No. 532, 1997. 

15. The Director of Protective Services shall be responsible for the fire department and the 
Districts emergency program.   

POWERS, DUTIES AND RESPONSIBILITIES OF THE CORPORATE OFFICER 

16. The Corporate Officer shall be responsible for corporate administration, whose powers, 
duties, and functions include those set out in Section 148 of the Act. 

POWERS, DUTIES AND RESPONSIBILITIES OF THE BYLAW 
ENFORCEMENT/SAFETY OFFICER 

17. The Bylaw Enforcement/Safety Officer is appointed under Section 36 of the Police Act 
of the Province of British Columbia and shall have the power to enforce any Bylaw of 
the District. 

18. The Bylaw Enforcement/Safety Officer shall be responsible for bylaw enforcement, 
building permits and inspections and assisting the Administrator with development 
applications.  

19. The Bylaw Enforcement/Safety Officer shall be responsible for all aspects of safety 
training, program/ policy development, and management systems implementation and 
maintenance for the District. 

  

October 10, 2017 Regular Council Meeting Agenda

42 of 89



PERSONNEL ADMINISTRATION 

20. The Council hereby delegates to the Administrator 

a. The power, duty and function to assign additional responsibilities to an 
Officer, including acting on behalf of another officer in his/her absence, to  
ensure efficient operation  of the District. 
 

b. The power, duty and function to appoint, assign responsibilities to, 
promote, discipline and dismiss employees other than officers. 

21 Any Officer may act in the place of the Administrator during his/her absence, except 
that the acting Administrator may not exercise the powers stated under Section 21 (a) of 
this Bylaw in relation to the Administrator or him/ herself. All Officers are deemed to be 
deputies to the Administrator. 

REPEAL 

22. Upon adoption of this bylaw, the Officer Bylaw No. 771, 2009 is hereby repealed. 

 
Read for a First Time on the ____day of ____, 2017.  
Read for a Second Time on the ____day of ____, 2017.  
Read for a Third Time on the ____day of ____, 2017. 
Adopted on the ____day of ____, 2017. 
 

_________________________________       ________________________________ 

Gwen Johansson,          Tammy McKeown 
MAYOR           Corporate Officer  
 
Certified a true copy of Bylaw No. 891 
this ___ day of _______________ 20_. 

________________________________ 

Clerk 

 

October 10, 2017 Regular Council Meeting Agenda

43 of 89



From the Desk of the  
Waste Reduction Office 
 
  

 

 

 
 

 
PO Box 810 

Dawson Creek, BC V1G 4H8 
1-800-670-7773 

 
10027-100 St. 

Fort St John BC V1J 3Y5 
1-888-689-6328 

 
 

September 11, 2017 

 

 

Dear Community Leaders,  

The Northern Environmental Action Team (NEAT) is hard at work preparing for Waste Reduction Week, 

October 16-22, 2017. We would like to request your help during the month of October promoting Waste 

Reduction in the Peace Region.   

We would like to challenge you to give up something during the month of October.  We have put 

together a list of suggestions, but we are open to your ideas too.  If you accept this challenge, we would 

like for you to provide us with 3 articles that will be posted on neat.ca and prrrdy.com.  The first article 

will be a brief introduction of yourself and the item you have chosen to give up for a month.  You are 

welcome to elaborate on your thoughts and feelings going into the challenge.  The second article will be 

about your actual experiences during the challenge.  The final article will be a wrap up about how you 

think you did, the challenges you experienced, your thoughts about the process of changing one small 

thing in your daily life, and if you plan to continue not using the item you selected.   

The following is a list of possible items for you to consider giving up for the month of October: 

 Single use cups 

 Single use water bottles 

 Single use coffee pods 

 Single use straws 

 Zip-loc bags 

 Plastic cling wrap 

 Clamshells 

 Disposable Cutlery 

 Plastic shopping bags 

 Take-out containers 

October 10, 2017 Regular Council Meeting Agenda

44 of 89

clerk
Typewritten Text
C1



From the Desk of the  
Waste Reduction Office 
 
  

 

 

 
 

 
PO Box 810 

Dawson Creek, BC V1G 4H8 
1-800-670-7773 

 
10027-100 St. 

Fort St John BC V1J 3Y5 
1-888-689-6328 

 
 

 Personal wipes 

 Single serving pre-packaged foods 

If any of these items trigger a desire to try and change your daily routine, we would love to hear from 

you.  We will work with you to come up with alternatives if you need help.  Please respond by emailing 

Tammy Hrab at tammy@neat.ca.  She will provide all participants with a schedule for this upcoming 

month.  We know that you are busy with all that you do in your life and we appreciate your 

consideration to participate in this challenge.   

We look forward to hearing from you.   

Sincerely, 

Tammy Hrab 

Communications Coordinator 

 

 

October 10, 2017 Regular Council Meeting Agenda

45 of 89

mailto:tammy@neat.ca


 
 
 
 
July 17, 2017            via email:  clerk@hudsonshope.ca  
 
 
Mayor and Council 
District of Hudson’s Hope 
Box 330, 9904 Dudley Drive, 
Hudson’s Hope, BC  V0C 1V0 
 
Re: Collaborative Emergency Management Model 
 
Dear Mayor Johansson and Council, 
 
The Peace River Regional District is extending an invitation to the District of Hudson’s Hope to 
participate in a Collaborative Emergency Management Model Feasibility Study.  The cost of the 
study is 100% funded by the regional district and would only involve staff time which is expected to 
be no more than 12 hours. 

As you know emergencies and disasters know no borders and often multiple communities are 
impacted simultaneously.  Those communities who have not had to open their EOC’s to respond to 
an emergency, have opened their communities to welcome and support displaced residents as a 
result of evacuations. 

Following the fires and floods of 2016, the Peace River Regional District Board updated our 
Strategic Plan with the following: 

 Strategic Goal 2: Ensure effective execution of Public Safety and Emergency Services 
initiatives  

 Objective 2.3: Develop a regional emergency response collaboration model.   

To support this goal and objective, the Board approved $25,000 in the 2017 budget to conduct a 
Regional Emergency Management Feasibility Study. 

On June 29, 2017 staff from the Peace River Regional District hosted an information session with 
CAO’s and Emergency Program Coordinators (EPC’s) to determine interest in the project.  At that 
meeting the purpose of the study was discussed: 

I. To examine existing regional emergency management models that support collaboration 
between local governments during an emergency or disaster; and 

II. To determine support to develop a regional collaboration model that meets the needs of 
all stakeholders to increase efficiency in responding, avoid duplication, maximize limited 
resources and meet the objectives of the BC Emergency Management System. 

 

October 10, 2017 Regular Council Meeting Agenda

46 of 89

mailto:clerk@hudsonshope.ca
clerk
Typewritten Text
C2



 

There was full agreement that the feasibility study would be a benefit to all local governments in 
the region. 

Our objective is to form an Advisory Group comprised of CAO’s and Emergency Program 
Coordinators (EPC’s) from each municipality and the Regional District.  From the Advisory 
Committee, a Working Group of EPC’s will be formed to finalize the ‘Scope of Work’ for the 
consultant, issue a Request for Proposal, and work with the consultant to examine and draft a 
Collaborative Emergency Management Model for presentation to the Advisory Group and later 
municipal councils and the Regional Board. It is anticipated that the Working Group will be 
required to commit no more than 12 hours to this project. 

We have attached a copy of the Collaborative Emergency Management Model Backgrounder 
document which includes a draft Scope of Work. 

We hope that the District of Hudson’s Hope will work with us to explore the different models 
currently in use in other regions and help us make a “made in the Peace” solution that will support 
and assist all local governments in our region. 

Please feel free to contact me at 250 784-3215 or Deborah.Jones-Middleton@prrd.bc.ca if you 
have any questions regarding the proposed project.  We look forward to hearing back from you. 

 

Sincerely, 

 

 

Deborah Jones-Middleton 
Protective Services Manager 

 

Attachment - Collaborative Emergency Management Model Backgrounder

October 10, 2017 Regular Council Meeting Agenda

47 of 89

mailto:Deborah.Jones-Middleton@prrd.bc.ca


BACKGROUND  

Over the past 10+ years the Peace Region has experienced: 

 two 1:100 year flood events; 
 wildfires in 2006, 2014 and 2016 that caused large scale community evacuations; 
 winter weather events that have resulted in wide spread losses of power and more; 
 the communities of Hudson’s Hope and Tumbler Ridge have had to evacuate all their 

residents due to wildfire, requiring coordination of resources and Emergency Support 
Services from other municipalities and the regional district.  

Emergencies and disasters know no borders and often multiple communities are impacted 
simultaneously.  Those who have not had to open their EOC’s to respond to an emergency, 
have opened their communities to welcome and support displaced residents as a result of 
evacuations.  

While all of our communities have supported each other during these difficult times, there may 
exist opportunities to streamline our operations, avoid duplication, conduct joint planning and 
provide support to each other as our staff resources become thin and fatigued during a long-
term event. 

In the updated Strategic plan the Peace River Regional District Board identified Strategic Goal 2 
“Ensure effective execution of Public Safety and Emergency Services initiatives – Objective 2.3 
Develop a regional emergency response collaboration model.  The Board also committed 
$25,000 for this project in the 2017 Budget. 

PURPOSE 

The purpose of the study is to: 

I. examine existing regional emergency management models that support 
collaboration between local governments during an emergency or disaster; and 

II. determine support to develop a regional collaboration model that meets the needs 
of all stakeholders to increase efficiency in responding, avoid duplication, maximize 
limited resources and meet the objectives of the BC Emergency Management 
System. 

PROPOSED SCOPE OF WORK FOR THE CONSULTANT 

A. provide a detailed description of the current regional models in use within Canada; 
B. facilitate discussions with local governments on: 

I. opportunities and challenges with respect to joint emergency planning, response, 
and recovery; 

II. potential areas of opportunities for collaboration (e.g., joint EOC’s, sharing 
resources, ESS, etc.); and 

III. examination of collaboration models currently in use in other regions. 
C. identify methods for: 

I. collaborative planning, training, and exercises; 
II. establishing protocols for: 

October 10, 2017 Regular Council Meeting Agenda

48 of 89



a. deployment of local government staff to assist neighbouring local 
governments; 

b. establishing a Joint Emergency Operations Centre; 
c. deployment of Emergency Support Services ; 
d. sharing and coordinating resources and technology; and 

D. to determine support to develop a regional collaboration model(s) based on feedback 
provided from the Regional District and member municipalities. 

DELIVERABLES AND DEADLINES 

The successful proponent will be required to provide a final report in electronic format to the 
Regional District and member municipalities as well as provide a presentation (in-person) to the 
Regional Board and local government councils and staff through a scheduled plenary meeting. 

PROPOSED PROCESS 

It is anticipated the process will entail the following steps: 

 A Working Group, made up of representatives from each municipality and the regional 
district, will be formed to finalize the ‘Scope of Work’ for the consultant.  It is 
anticipated that the Working Group will be required to commit no more than 6 hours 
per month to this project.   

 The Working Group will report to an Advisory Committee that also has representatives 
from each municipality and the regional district. 

 Once the ‘Scope of Work’ is finalized a Request for Proposal will be issued by the 
Regional District. 

 The working Group will review all proposals and make a recommendation to the 
Advisory Group on the best proposal.   

 Once a consultant has been contracted the Working Group will work with them to 
deliver a draft Collaborative Emergency Management Model to the Advisory Group.   

 Once the draft Collaborative Emergency Management Model is approved by the 
Advisory Group a plenary session for municipal council, regional district board, and staff 
will be planned to present the draft model for consideration and support. 

 

October 10, 2017 Regular Council Meeting Agenda

49 of 89



DATE: September 12, 2017 

TO: CITY COUNCIL

NAME AND TITLE: Mayor Lyn Hall 

SUBJECT: Union of British Columbia Municipalities (UBCM) Late Resolution for 
Commercial Inter-City Bus Transportation

ATTACHMENTS: Appendix “A” – Proposed Resolution to UBCM:  Commercial Inter-city Bus 
Transportation 

DISCUSSION: 
Greyhound Canada is proposing to end all of its passenger service in Central and Northern British Columbia. 
The routes proposed to end are: Prince George to Prince Rupert; Prince George to Valemount;  Prince George 
to Dawson Creek; and Dawson Creek to Whitehorse. They have indicated that they will continue with freight 
services to these communities.  

RESPECTFULLY SUBMITTED:

_____________________________ 
Mayor Lyn Hall 

MEETING DATE: September 18, 2017

RECOMMENDATIONS:  

That Council: 

1. SUPPORT the draft resolution to UBCM attached as Appendix “A” to the report, calling on the
Passenger Transportation Board to decline Greyhound Canada’s application to cease operation of
selected inter-city bus routes, and instead ensure that BC’s transportation network remains fully
connected, to achieve our province’s collective public safety, economic, social and environmental
goals.

2. REQUEST the provincial government to review and strengthen transportation infrastructure and
networks across the province, enabling British Columbians to support community resilience,
diversity, and competiveness; spark and sustain economic growth; and seize opportunities.

Document No. 439907 

October 10, 2017 Regular Council Meeting Agenda

50 of 89

clerk
Typewritten Text
C3



Commercial Inter-city Bus Transportation Prince George 

Whereas Greyhound Canada has applied to the Passenger Transportation Board (PTB) to 
cease operation of the following inter-city bus routes: Victoria to Nanaimo, Prince George to 
Prince Rupert, Prince George to Valemount, Prince George to Dawson Creek, and Dawson 
Creek to Whitehorse; 

And whereas in 2012 and 2013, Greyhound Canada received PTB approval to cease operation 
of a route on Vancouver Island; reduce frequency of service on 15 other routes in BC; and 
eliminate multiple “route points” (stops) from 11 routes; 

And whereas the Bulkley Nechako Regional Transit pilot project along the Highway 16 Corridor 
is designed to dovetail rather than compete with existing commercial inter-city bus 
transportation services; 

And whereas further reductions in commercial inter-city bus service will have significant public 
safety, economic, social, and environmental impacts on business, industry, local governments 
and First Nations throughout British Columbia: 

Therefore be it resolved that the Passenger Transportation Board decline Greyhound Canada’s 
application to cease operation of selected inter-city bus routes, and instead ensure that BC’s 
transportation network remains fully connected, to achieve our province’s collective public 
safety, economic, social, and environmental goals; 

And be it further resolved that the provincial government review and strengthen transportation 
infrastructure and networks across the province, enabling British Columbians to support 
community resilience, diversity and competitiveness; spark and sustain economic growth; and 
seize opportunities. 

October 10, 2017 Regular Council Meeting Agenda

51 of 89



From: Minister, MAH MAH:EX
To: Tammy McKeown
Subject: 206769: Minister Robinson Introduction
Date: Thursday, September 14, 2017 12:48:59 PM

 
 
Ref:  206769
 
Her Worship Mayor Gwen Johannson
 and Members of Council
District of Hudson's Hope
 
Email:         district@hudsonshope.ca
 
Dear Mayor Johannson and Councillors:
 
I am pleased to take this opportunity to introduce myself to you as the Minister of Municipal Affairs
and Housing.

I am honoured to have been asked by the Honourable John Horgan, Premier, to undertake
responsibility for this ministry, which has an important mandate to support the health and success of
communities and their residents, including by now combining three important pillars of
Local Government, Housing and Construction Standards and lower mainland transit (TransLink), into
one ministry.
 
I am familiar with this portfolio both from my previous experience as City Councillor for the City of
Coquitlam and six years’ experience as Opposition Critic for Local Government in the Legislature.  I
trust that our government shares consistent priorities with yours of making life more affordable for
British Columbians, delivering services that people can count on and building a strong, sustainable,
innovative economy that works for everyone.
 
I have the support of an experienced and capable executive team:  Jacqueline Dawes, Deputy
Minister; Tara Faganello, Assistant Deputy Minister, Local Government; Greg Steves, Assistant
Deputy Minister, Housing and Construction Standards, and Kevin Volk, Assistant Deputy Minister,
Community and Legislative Services (including responsibility for TransLink).  This team will be
working closely with me as we take on the ambitious mandate that I have been given by the
Premier.  We look forward to working with you as together we seek the best ways to address the
challenges and opportunities facing your communities.
 
I am hoping to connect with you by telephone before the annual Union of British Columbia
Municipalities Convention in September 2017, and ideally in an in-person meeting with you at the
Convention.  Otherwise, I look forward to meeting with you in future as areas of shared interest, or
other priorities, arise.
 
Again, I am pleased to have this portfolio and to take on the responsibility for its programs which are
of critical importance to communities and regions across British Columbia.

October 10, 2017 Regular Council Meeting Agenda

52 of 89

mailto:clerk@hudsonshope.ca
clerk
Typewritten Text
C4



 
Sincerely,
 
Selina Robinson
Minister of Municipal Affairs
and Housing
 

October 10, 2017 Regular Council Meeting Agenda

53 of 89



October 10, 2017 Regular Council Meeting Agenda

54 of 89

clerk
Typewritten Text
C5



October 10, 2017 Regular Council Meeting Agenda

55 of 89



October 10, 2017 Regular Council Meeting Agenda

56 of 89



October 10, 2017 Regular Council Meeting Agenda

57 of 89

clerk
Typewritten Text
C6



October 10, 2017 Regular Council Meeting Agenda

58 of 89

clerk
Typewritten Text
C7



October 10, 2017 Regular Council Meeting Agenda

59 of 89



Cannabis Legalization and 
Regulation in British Columbia 
Discussion Paper

October 10, 2017 Regular Council Meeting Agenda

60 of 89



Introduction 
In 2015, the federal government committed to legalizing non-medical cannabis in Canada. On June 30, 
2016, it established the Task Force on Cannabis Legalization and Regulation (the Task Force) to consult 
and advise on the design of a new legislative and regulatory framework. The Task Force report was 
released on December 13, 2016, and provides a comprehensive set of recommendations for 
governments to consider. 

On April 13, 2017, the federal government introduced Bill C-45, the Cannabis Act and Bill C-46 (the Act 
to amend the Criminal Code), in the House of Commons. The Bills are currently making their way 
through the parliamentary process. Bill C-46 amends the Criminal Code to simplify and strengthen its 
approach to alcohol and drug impaired driving, and the federal government plans to move quickly to 
bring the amendments into force once the Bill receives Royal Assent.  

The federal government plans to bring Bill C-45 into force in July 2018; this will make non-medical 
cannabis legal in Canada as of that date. Bill C-45 is largely based on the recommendations of the Task 
Force. It seeks to balance the objectives of providing access to a regulated supply of cannabis, 
implementing restrictions to minimize the harms associated with cannabis use, and reducing the scope 
and scale of the illegal market and its associated social harms. 

The federal government’s decision to legalize cannabis creates a corresponding need for provincial and 
territorial governments to regulate it. While the federal government intends to assume responsibility for 
licensing cannabis producers and regulating production and product standards, provinces and territories 
will be responsible for many of the decisions about how non-medical cannabis is regulated in their 
jurisdictions.  These include, but are not limited to: distribution and retail systems; compliance and 
enforcement regimes; age limits; restrictions on possession, public consumption and personal 
cultivation; and amendments to road safety laws. 

As it considers these important decisions, the BC Government wants to hear from local governments, 
Indigenous governments and organizations, individual British Columbians, and the broad range of other 
stakeholders that will be affected by cannabis legalization. 

This discussion paper has been prepared to help inform this public and stakeholder engagement. It 
addresses a number of key policy issues for BC, including minimum age, public possession and 
consumption, drug-impaired driving, personal cultivation, and distribution and retail. It draws heavily 
from the analysis of the Task Force, and identifies policy options to consider in developing a BC 
regulatory regime for non-medical cannabis. 

Note that this paper does not address regulation of medical cannabis. For now, the federal government 
has decided to maintain a separate system for medical cannabis.  The Province has a more limited role in 
the medical cannabis system, and the policy issues and policy choices available are very different, in part 
because of a history of court cases related to the Canadian Charter of Rights and Freedoms. 

October 10, 2017 Regular Council Meeting Agenda

61 of 89

https://www.canada.ca/en/services/health/marijuana-cannabis/task-force-marijuana-legalization-regulation/framework-legalization-regulation-cannabis-in-canada.html


Minimum Age 
While Bill C-45 establishes a minimum age of 18 years to buy, grow, and publicly possess up to 30 grams 
of non-medical cannabis, provinces and territories can choose to establish a higher minimum age in 
their jurisdictions. This is consistent with the Task Force recommendations. 

• BC could accept the federal minimum age of 18. However, the minimum age to buy tobacco and 
alcohol in BC is 19. 19 is also the BC age of majority, when minors become legal adults. In 
addition, since significant numbers of high school students turn 18 before they graduate, a 
minimum age of 18 could increase the availability of cannabis to younger teens. 

• BC could set the minimum age at 19. This would be consistent with the minimum ages for 
tobacco and alcohol, and with the BC age of majority. 

• BC could set the minimum age at 21 or higher. Emerging evidence suggests that cannabis use 
could affect brain development up to age 25. As a result, many health professionals favour a 
minimum age of 21. 

However, as the Task Force recognized, setting the minimum age too high could have 
unintended consequences. Currently, persons under 25 are the segment of the population most 
likely to use cannabis. The greater the number of young users who cannot buy legal cannabis, 
the more likely that there will continue to be a robust illegal market where they can continue to 
buy untested and unregulated cannabis. 

Finally, it’s important to note that a legal minimum age is not the only tool to discourage cannabis use 
by young persons. As an example, public education campaigns that provide information about how 
cannabis use can limit academic performance and future opportunities have been found to be effective. 

Personal Possession - Adults 
Bill C-45 establishes a 30 gram limit on public possession of dried cannabis. Practically, this means that 
this is the maximum amount that an adult could buy and take home at any one time (for context, one 
joint typically contains between .33g to 1g of cannabis). The legislation also sets possession limits for 
other forms of cannabis (e.g. oils, solids containing cannabis, seeds) and the federal government intends 
to add other types of cannabis products (e.g. edibles) by regulation at a later date.  

The 30 gram limit is consistent with the Task Force recommendation and with public possession limits in 
other jurisdictions that have legalized non-medical cannabis. The reason for public possession limits is 
that possession of large amounts of cannabis can be an indicator of intent to traffic, so a public 
possession limit can help law enforcement to distinguish between legal possession for personal use, and 
illegal possession for the purpose of trafficking. 

Provinces and territories cannot increase the public possession limit, but they can set a lower limit. 
However, a consistent possession limit across the provinces and territories would be easier for the 
public to understand and comply with. 

October 10, 2017 Regular Council Meeting Agenda

62 of 89



Personal Possession – Youths 
While persons under 18 will not be able to buy or grow cannabis under Bill C-45, they are not prohibited 
from possessing up to 5 grams of dried cannabis or equivalent amounts for other cannabis products. 
This is consistent with the Task Force report, which took the position that youth should not be 
criminalized for possession of relatively small amounts of cannabis. However, provinces and territories 
can establish laws that prohibit possession by persons under an established provincial minimum age. 
Such a provincial law would not result in a criminal conviction and would be similar to how BC deals with 
alcohol – persons under 19 are prohibited from possessing alcohol, and a law enforcement officer can 
confiscate it and has the option of issuing a ticket. 

Public consumption 
Bill C-45 will amend the federal Non-smokers’ Health Act to prohibit cannabis smoking and vaping in 
certain federally-regulated places (e.g. planes, trains), but regulation of public consumption of cannabis 
will otherwise fall within provincial and territorial jurisdiction.  

BC can restrict where non-medical cannabis can be consumed, and can place different restrictions on 
different types of consumption (e.g. smoked, eaten). If BC does not legislate restrictions on public 
consumption by the time Bill C-45 comes into force, it will be legal to smoke, vape, and otherwise 
consume cannabis in public, including in places where tobacco smoking and vaping are forbidden. 

For the purpose of considering potential restrictions on public consumption, it may be helpful to 
consider cannabis smoking and vaping separately from other forms of consumption. 

Cannabis Smoking and Vaping 
The Task Force recommended that current restrictions on public tobacco smoking be extended to 
cannabis. In BC, both tobacco smoking and vaping are currently prohibited in areas such as 
workplaces, enclosed public spaces, on health authority and school board property, and in other 
prescribed places such as transit shelters, and common areas of apartment buildings and community 
care facilities. 

BC has a number of options to consider: 

• BC could extend existing restrictions on tobacco smoking and vaping to cannabis smoking and 
vaping – under provincial law, adults would then be allowed to smoke or vape cannabis 
anywhere they can smoke or vape tobacco. Depending on the regulatory scheme established by 
the Province, local governments may also be able to establish additional restrictions, such as 
prohibiting cannabis smoking and vaping in public parks. 

• BC could prohibit public cannabis smoking altogether, but allow cannabis vaping wherever 
tobacco smoking and vaping are allowed. Compared to smoking, vaped cannabis has a reduced 
odour and is less likely to be a nuisance to passersby. In addition, banning public cannabis 
smoking could help avoid normalizing cannabis use. 

October 10, 2017 Regular Council Meeting Agenda

63 of 89



• BC could also prohibit public cannabis smoking and vaping altogether and establish a licensing 
scheme to allow designated consumption areas, e.g. cannabis lounges. However, it is unlikely 
that such a licensing scheme could be implemented in time for legalization. 

Other forms of consumption: 
While edible, drinkable, and topical forms of cannabis will not be commercially available immediately 
upon legalization, the federal government intends to regulate the production and manufacturing of 
these products for sale at some point. In addition, adults will be allowed to make their own edible 
and other products at home. 

Public consumption of non-inhaled forms of cannabis would be very difficult to detect and enforce. 
While BC could legislate restrictions on public consumption of these forms of cannabis, it may be 
more practical to rely on public intoxication and disorderly conduct laws to manage intoxication 
issues related to public consumption. 

Drug-impaired Driving 
With 17% of British Columbians reporting cannabis use within the previous year1, we know that it’s very 
likely that a number of British Columbians are already driving with cannabis in their system, whether 
they are impaired or not. In 2016, drugs (cannabis or otherwise) were a contributing factor in fewer than 
8% of BC road fatalities; however, legalization raises legitimate concerns about the potential for 
cannabis-impaired driving to increase, and make our roads less safe. 

Drug-impaired driving is already prohibited under the Criminal Code, but Bill C-46 would overhaul 
existing impaired driving provisions and specifically address cannabis impairment. The amendments will 
provide authority for the federal government to set a blood tetrahydrocannabinol (THC) limit beyond 
which a person can be criminally charged with cannabis-impaired driving. This is similar to the blood 
alcohol limits in place for alcohol-impaired driving. 

The proposed federal criminal penalties for drug-impaired driving range from a minimum of a $1,000 
fine to up to a maximum of 10 years in jail.  

In BC, police who stop an alcohol-impaired driver can charge the driver criminally, but they also have the 
option of issuing an Immediate Roadside Prohibition (IRP) or an Administrative Driving Prohibition (ADP) 
under the BC Motor Vehicle Act. Sanctions can include licence prohibitions, monetary penalties, vehicle 
impoundment, and license reinstatement fees. These programs have been very effective in reducing the 
number of road fatalities on BC roads. 

While the IRP and ADP schemes do not currently apply to drug-impaired driving, police officers in BC do 
have the option to issue a 24-hour roadside prohibition to a suspected drug-affected driver, with or 
without a criminal charge. 

1 Canadian Tobacco, Alcohol and Drugs Survey, 2015 

October 10, 2017 Regular Council Meeting Agenda

64 of 89

http://www2.gov.bc.ca/assets/gov/driving-and-transportation/driving/publications/factsheet-immediate-roadside-prohibition.pdf


One key challenge is that unlike with blood alcohol, there is not enough scientific evidence to link a 
particular blood THC level with impairment. In fact, it is known that THC can remain in the blood after 
any impairment has resolved, particularly for frequent users.  An IRP or ADP-type scheme would 
therefore have to rely on other ways to assess impairment, such as a Standard Field Sobriety Test (SFST) 
conducted by a trained police officer, or evaluation by a Drug Recognition Expert (DRE). The approval of 
oral fluid screening devices and/or the setting of per se limits by the federal government could also 
influence the introduction of an administrative regime for drug-impaired driving.  

BC could consider one or more of the following to address the risk that cannabis legalization could lead 
to increased impaired driving: 

• BC could launch a public education and awareness campaign to inform British Columbians about 
the risks and potential consequences of cannabis-impaired driving. 

• BC could set a zero-tolerance standard in respect of blood THC content for drivers in the 
Graduated Licensing Program (drivers with an “L” or “N” designation) and/or for drivers under a 
specific age threshold. 

• BC could invest in SFST and DRE training for more police officers. 

• BC could expand the IRP and/or ADP programs to include drug-impaired driving. 

Personal Cultivation 
Bill C-45 allows adults to grow up to 4 cannabis plants per household, up to a maximum plant height of 
100 centimetres. Bill C-45 does not place restrictions on where plants can be located (indoor vs. 
outdoor) and does not require home growers to put any security measures in place, but it is open to 
provinces and territories to establish such restrictions. 

In considering personal cultivation, the Task Force acknowledged concerns about risks such as mould, 
fire hazards associated with improper electrical installation, use of pesticides, and risk of break-in and 
theft. However, it noted that these concerns were largely shaped by experience with large scale illegal 
grow operations, and found that on balance, allowing small-scale home cultivation of up to four plants 
was reasonable. 

The Task Force recognized the need for security measures to prevent theft and youth access, and for 
guidelines to ensure that cannabis plants are not accessible to children. The Task Force also suggested 
that local authorities should establish oversight and approval frameworks, such as a requirement that 
individuals be required to notify local authorities if they are undertaking personal cultivation. 

In thinking about possible restrictions on personal cannabis cultivation, it may be helpful to keep in mind 
that it is legal in Canada to grow tobacco and to produce wine or beer at home for personal use with 

October 10, 2017 Regular Council Meeting Agenda

65 of 89



very few restrictions. In particular, the law does not require specific security measures to prevent theft, 
or access by children and youth.2 

BC has several options to consider regarding restrictions on home cultivation of non-medical cannabis: 

• BC could adopt a lower limit than 4 plants per household for non-medical cannabis cultivation. 

• BC could set restrictions regarding where and how non-medical cannabis can be grown at home. 
For example, it could: prohibit outdoor cultivation; allow outdoor cultivation but require that 
plants not be visible from outside the property; and/or require that any outdoor plants be 
secured against theft. 

• BC could establish a registration requirement for persons who want to grow non-medical 
cannabis at home. However, there would be significant costs associated with administering a 
registration requirement, and the benefits may be questionable, since those who do not plan to 
comply with laws on home cultivation may be unlikely to register in the first place. 

• If BC decides not to implement one or more of the above measures, local governments could be 
authorized to do so. 

Distribution Model 
Under Bill C-45, each province or territory will decide how cannabis will be distributed in its jurisdiction. 
Distribution is the process by which goods are supplied to retailers that sell to consumers. Distributors 
are often called wholesalers. 

There are three basic models for the warehousing and distribution of cannabis to retailers in BC: 
government, private, or direct. 

• Government distribution – In this model, government would be responsible for warehousing 
and distribution of cannabis. Licensed producers would send cannabis products to a government 
distributor, which would then fill orders from cannabis retailers. Government distribution allows 
for direct control over the movement of cannabis products, but requires significant up-front 
investment and set-up. The Task Force heard strong support for government distribution, noting 
that it has proven effective with alcohol. 

• Private distribution – In this model, one or more private businesses could be responsible for the 
physical warehousing and distribution of cannabis. However, significant government oversight 
would be required in the form of licensing, tracking and reporting requirements, as well as 
regular audits and inspections.  

• Direct distribution – In this model, the province would authorize federally licensed producers to 
distribute their own products directly to retailers. This model would also require significant 

2 Parents have a general legal duty to supervise and keep their children safe, but the law does not create specific 
requirements to protect children from all of the potential dangers that may be present in a home (e.g., alcohol, 
prescription drugs, and poisons). 

October 10, 2017 Regular Council Meeting Agenda

66 of 89



government oversight and could make it challenging for smaller producers to get their products 
to market. 

Retail 
Under Bill C-45, each province or territory will decide the retail model for cannabis in its jurisdiction. 
Recognizing that the July 2018 timeline may not give provinces or territories enough time to establish 
their retail regimes before legalization, the federal government will implement an online retail system as 
an interim solution. 

BC has a number of options for retail: 

• BC could establish a public or private retail system, or potentially a mix of both, as currently 
exists for alcohol.  A public system would require significant up-front investment in retail 
infrastructure, but there could also be additional revenue generated from retail sales.  A private 
system would require a more robust licensing, compliance and enforcement system, but the 
associated costs could be recovered through licensing fees. 

In a private retail system, it could be possible to allow some existing illegal dispensaries to 
transition into the legal system; in a public system such as that planned in Ontario, this would 
not be possible. 

• BC could require that cannabis be sold in dedicated storefronts, or it could allow cannabis to be 
sold out of existing businesses such as liquor stores or pharmacies.   

One public health concern about co-locating cannabis with other products is that it could expose 
significant numbers of people to cannabis products who might not otherwise seek them out; 
this could contribute to normalization or more widespread use. In addition, the Task Force 
strongly recommended against allowing co-location of alcohol or tobacco sales with cannabis, 
but recognized that separating them could be a challenge in remote communities where a 
dedicated cannabis storefront might not be viable. 

• BC could establish a direct-to-consumer mail-order system.  This could help provide access to 
legal cannabis for those in rural and remote locations and persons with mobility challenges. 

Conclusion 
Cannabis legalization presents complex policy challenges for the Province.  We expect that, as in other 
jurisdictions that have legalized, it will take several years to develop, establish, and refine an effective 
non-medical cannabis regime that over time eliminates the illegal market.  The information gathered 
through this engagement will inform the Province’s policy decisions. We appreciate your interest and 
feedback. 

 

October 10, 2017 Regular Council Meeting Agenda

67 of 89



From: Salish Sea Trust
To: Salish Sea Trust
Subject: Dear Mayor & Council - Please consider BC, our Salish Sea Heritage, & House of Commons E-Petition 1269
Date: September 29, 2017 5:06:05 PM
Attachments: jhjkogmpdmpkmpko.png

Dear Mayor & Council,

You'll no doubt have gathered a lot of ideas from the UBCM meetings of this past week. We would like to add one more however - offering the balanced
economic and environmental opportunity of our World Heritage Site application for the Salish Sea, and all the benefits which would follow. 

Yesterday we invited BC MLAs, and Canada's MPs, to sign onto the federal E-Petition that would have the Salish Sea added onto Canada’s Tentative
List for UNESCO World Heritage Sites. The on-line House of Commons Petition is sponsored by BC MP Rachel Blaney, and follows from an
application the Salish Sea Trust submitted to Parks Canada in May.

With this letter we would like to invite your consideration in personally signing e-Petition 1269 for the Salish Sea.  And, if you deem it appropriate and
within your capacity as an elected representative, we would welcome you making this Petition known to those in your communities. We have just two
months remaining to convince the federal government of the importance in protecting the Salish Sea's heritage and outstanding universal values. In
December the PM or Environment Minister will announce those WHS applications which will be approved to the Tentative List.

By way of providing a quick update and background please note that some 15,000 individuals expressed support for the Salish Sea World Heritage Site
application previously - including MPs, MLAs, local governments and First Nations. Our website provides an overview as well as a copy of the
application. And you may find our short intro to the World Heritage Site initiative of interest as well ...“Salish Sea - A Legacy Moment”:
https://vimeo.com/212160230

The Salish Sea WHS E-Petition serves to remind our federal representatives of the importance of the Salish Sea, and the considerable economic and
environmental benefits that come from being recognized as a World Heritage Site - with cultural and natural protections the foundation of the proposal.
The Lakes District in Britain, for example, sees overall tourism returns amounting to £2.2B, sustaining some 18,000 jobs. Their recent WHS cultural
landscape designation is expected to add a minimum of £20M annually. 

Cooperation and partnership, reconciliation and healing, sustainability and stewardship are similar priorities of the UNESCO World Heritage Site
program – a program which requires all partners to agree, and a 6-10 year assessment and outreach process before approval may be given. The Salish Sea
WHS application fits very specific targets of UNESCO’s WHS program – including climate change, enabling indigenous communities, and ocean/marine
health and revitalization. It is also of particular interest that the west coast of North America is under-represented in terms of WHS sites; and the potential
for inter-jurisdictional and co-governance arrangements with WA/OR/CA coincides with present goals of consolidating coastal ecosystem-based
management. Such management practices were embraced last year in the Great Bear Rainforest mid-coast agreement, and in the north coast Marine Plan
Partnership. To our detriment the Salish Sea does not have a management plan in place at this time.

We can provide additional information with respect to the rationale, benefits and process particular to World Heritage Sites, and the Salish Sea in
particular, on request. With this note however we simply wanted to invite you to show your support for the Salish Sea and its world -class heritage, by
way of signing E-Petition 1269: https://petitions.ourcommons.ca/en/Petition/Details?Petition=e-1269  FYI, we have provided a copy of this Petition
below, along with our press release announcement. 

Please feel free to contact us directly if you have questions.

best wishes,

Laurie Gourlay
Interim Director
Salish Sea Trust

"The sea lives in every one of us." - Wyland

Salish Sea Trust, Box 333, Cedar, B.C., V9X 1W1
250.722.3444, <salishseatrust@shaw.ca> (www.salishseatrust.ca)

 

Please Sign, & Circulate ...Press Release Posted Below.

October 10, 2017 Regular Council Meeting Agenda

68 of 89

mailto:salishseatrust@shaw.ca
https://vimeo.com/212160230
https://petitions.ourcommons.ca/en/Petition/Details?Petition=e-1269
mailto:salishseatrust@shaw.ca
http://www.salishseatrust.ca/

clerk
Typewritten Text
C8



~~~~~~~~~~~~~~~~~~~~~~~~~~~~~~~~~~~~~~~~~~~~~~~~~~~~~~~~~~~~~~~~~~

 Media Release
For Immediate Release

        Sept. 27, 2017

The Salish Sea Coasts Into The House of Commons 
E-Petition Calls For World Heritage Site Recognition

[CEDAR, BC] – "The Salish Sea is ten weeks away from being recognized as a World Heritage Site," according to the ever-optimistic predictions of Laurie
Gourlay, Interim Director of the Salish Sea Trust - the organization that submitted the UNESCO WHS application.

And just to be sure Canada's federal politicians appreciate the global significance of the Salish Sea's world-class heritage, MP Rachel Blaney is sponsoring
their House of Commons on-line Petition E-1269. Blaney is MP for North Island - Powell River, and has a long history of working with coastal and
indigenous communities. 

"We want Parliamentarians to seize this legacy moment for Canada," says Gourlay. "To realize how important the Salish Sea is to the west coast's future,
and to release the many economic and  environmental benefits that will accrue by recognizing it as a World Heritage Site."

Working with SeaLegacy the non-profit Salish Sea Trust submitted a World Heritage Site application to Parks Canada in May. Accompanied by 15,000
signatures of support this spring the Trust's Petition maintains that the Pacific Ocean gateway is vitally important to Canadians, and  directly calls upon
MP's to 'show leadership for coastal and marine protection initiatives'.

"We're doubling down, reaching out to Parliament and to all Canadians," Gourlay adds. "We want support from all who love the Salish Sea, who
appreciate its diversity and beauty, and the incredible historical, cultural and natural values these west coast waters embody." 

The Petition calls for UNESCO World Heritage Site designation to help protect some 3000 species in this unique inner ocean, along with recognition of a
10,000 year old First Nation culture that deserves honour and respect. All Canadians are invited to show their support.

October 10, 2017 Regular Council Meeting Agenda

69 of 89



A copy of House of Commons Salish Sea Petition E-1269 can be found at:  https://petitions.ourcommons.ca/en/Petition/Details?Petition=e-1269

- 30 -

Further information:

Laurie Gourlay            Kait Burgan                             MP Rachel Blaney
Interim Director          SeaLegacy                               North Island—Powell River
Salish Sea Trust           250-816-0046                         House of Commons
(250 722-3444)           www.sealegacy.org                613-943-2185

Salish Sea Trust, Box 333, Cedar, B.C., V9X 1W1
250.722.3444, <salishseatrust@shaw.ca> (www.salishseatrust.ca)

~~~~~~~~~~~~~~~~~~~~~~~~~~~~~~~~~~~~~~~~~~~~~~~~~~~~~~~~~~~~~~~~~~

October 10, 2017 Regular Council Meeting Agenda

70 of 89

https://petitions.ourcommons.ca/en/Petition/Details?Petition=e-1269
tel:250-816-0046
http://www.sealegacy.org/
mailto:salishseatrust@shaw.ca
http://www.salishseatrust.ca/


 

1 
 

sitecproject.com 

 

Diane McSherry 
Vice President & Project Director 
Site C Clean Energy Project 
P.O. Box 49260 
Vancouver, B.C. V7X 1V5 
 
October 2017 
 
Sent via email 

 

Re: Notice of Site C Construction Activities: October to December 2017 

 
Dear Mayor Johansson, 

This letter describes the construction activities planned from October 1 to December 31, 2017.  

The provincial government has asked the British Columbia Utilities Commission (BCUC) to 
review the Site C project. The review began on August 9, 2017. The terms of reference require 
a preliminary report from the BCUC within six weeks (by September 20, 2017), and a final report 
within 12 weeks (by November 1, 2017). Construction and procurement activities will continue 
during the review; however, no major contract awards will be made until the review has been 
completed and the government has made a decision.  

For the upcoming three-month period, construction is planned to focus on the advancement of 
earthworks at the dam site and continued preparation for work in other project areas. Work and 
investigation areas will include the dam site, segments of Highway 29, Wuthrich Quarry, West 
Pine Quarry, Portage Mountain Quarry and the transmission line corridor and access roads. 
Two maps are attached to this letter to illustrate the work areas. Please note that the following 
activities are subject to change. 

For all of the activities described in this letter, the necessary permits, authorizations, licenses or 
government approvals have been or will be obtained as required to proceed with the work. 
Geotechnical site investigations, air quality monitoring, heritage and other field studies are 
ongoing. BC Hydro will continue to provide annual field study notices of these activities. In all of 
the identified work areas, geotechnical site investigations, including the drilling of test holes, 
may be required.  

Please let us know if you have any questions. 

 
October to December 2017 
The following construction-related activities are expected to commence or continue in the period 
from October to December 2017:  
 
Dam site area 

 Debris management: Wood waste and debris will be disposed or removed from site. 
 Access roads: Crews will continue to maintain the dam site access roads and existing 

south bank resource roads, including the petroleum development roads.  
 Main civil works: The main civil works contractor will continue their construction activities 

during this period. In addition to the excavation mentioned above, this work will include: 

October 10, 2017 Regular Council Meeting Agenda

71 of 89

clerk
Typewritten Text
C9



 

2 

 

sitecproject.com 

o Continued mobilization of crews, equipment and materials 
o Continued construction of site infrastructure 
o Installation of geotechnical instrumentation on the north and south banks 
o Excavation on the north and south banks, including north bank slope stabilization 

and excavation for the powerhouse. Excavated materials will be moved to the 
designated relocated surplus excavation material (RSEM) sites on both the north 
and south banks. Dikes will be constructed for the RSEM sites and some 
dredging may be required 

o Blasting on the south bank 
o Construction of the south bank drainage tunnel 
o The initiation of excavation for the diversion tunnels 
o Continued excavation for the south bank approach channel 
o Material will be crushed for the roller-compacted concrete (RCC) buttress on the 

south bank 
o Concrete batching will occur at the contractor’s on-site batching facilities 
o Construction of the powerhouse buttress will occur, including concrete placement 
o Construction of the inlet and outlet cofferdams and north bank stage 1 cofferdam 
o Riprap placement along the cofferdams 
o Ongoing excavation and site preparation to prepare for the mobilization of the 

Site C substation contractor  
o Excavation will begin for the earthfill dam 

 Dam site security: Security infrastructure will continue to be installed. A security boat will 
patrol the Peace River. 

 Turbines and generators contractor: The turbines and generators contractor will continue 
to mobilize crews and equipment to their work area on the south bank. The contractor 
will ship material to the dam site by rail and will construct equipment in their on-site 
manufacturing facility.  

 
Public roads and highways  

 Highway 29 at Halfway River, Farrell Creek East, Farrell Creek, Dry Creek and Lynx 
Creek: Survey work, geotechnical investigations and heritage monitoring may occur as 
required to support detailed design development. 

 Public road upgrades: Upgrade work will be completed for 271 Road during this period.  
 

Peace River/reservoir 
 Fish habitat enhancement project: Visual investigations will continue to prepare for the 

fish habitat enhancement project.  
 Timber removal: Merchantable logs will be transported to local mills. Waste wood will be 

disposed. Some burning may occur.  
 
Transmission works  

 Access road upgrades: Upgrades to portions of existing access roads will be completed 
in this period. This is required to provide safe access to the transmission line right-of-
way. This work will include erosion and sediment control.  

October 10, 2017 Regular Council Meeting Agenda

72 of 89



 

3 

 

sitecproject.com 

 Survey and investigative works: Survey and investigative works will continue along the 
transmission line right-of-way in preparation for the construction of the two new 500 kV 
transmission lines. 

 
Production and transport of materials 

 Wuthrich Quarry: Riprap will be produced for use in construction at the dam site. 
Blasting will occur as part of this work. 

 West Pine Quarry: Riprap will be produced for use in construction at the dam site. 
Blasting will occur as part of this work. 

 Portage Mountain Quarry: Access roads will be completed during this period.  
 85th Avenue Industrial Lands: The main civil works contractor will continue work at the 

85th Avenue Industrial Lands. This will include the preparation of offices, a parking lot 
and laydown/stockpile areas. Work will occur to prepare the Industrial Lands for 
excavation. 

 Conveyor belt system: Preparatory work will continue for the temporary conveyor belt 
system. Fencing will continue to be installed along the conveyer right-of-way. 
Construction of the conveyor may begin. 

 
Water Licence(s) and Leaves to Commence Construction 
During the course of construction, BC Hydro will apply for a series of Leaves to Commence 
Construction (LCCs) under its Water Licences in order to construct particular project works or 
components of project works. Construction-related activities under the LCCs are also 
independently reviewed by the Independent Engineer and the Independent Environmental 
Monitor as required by BC Hydro’s Water Licences.  
To date, BC Hydro has obtained LCCs for: 

 Initial works 
 RSEM storage areas 
 North and south bank excavations 
 South bank stage 1 cofferdam 
 Clearing of the eastern reservoir 
 North bank cofferdams and diversion tunnel works 
 RCC buttress foundation preparation and RCC placement 
 Geotechnical investigations for the Hudson’s Hope Shoreline Protection and Halfway 

River debris boom 
 Earthfill dam excavation, foundation preparation, fill placement and approach channel 

foundation preparation and placement 
In the upcoming three-to-six month period, BC Hydro will also be seeking an LCC for 
construction, operation and maintenance of the Halfway River debris boom. 
BC Hydro has applied for a Water Licence for the temporary and permanent fish passage 
facilities. A decision from the Office of the Water Comptroller is anticipated on these Water 
Licences in the upcoming three-to-six month period. 
 
  

October 10, 2017 Regular Council Meeting Agenda

73 of 89



 

4 

 

sitecproject.com 

What to expect  
During this time period, the following can be expected: 

 There will be truck traffic on public roads as the hauling of materials, equipment, rock, 
and timber continues. This will include increased industrial traffic on resource roads and 
public roads from Chetwynd leading to the site on the south bank.  

 Day, night and weekend shifts are anticipated for the duration of the project. 
 Some noise will occur in the vicinity of the dam site, along public roads and in other work 

areas as a result of the scheduled construction activities.  
 Some noise and vibration will result from the periodic blasting and other work that is 

occurring in Wuthrich Quarry and West Pine Quarry. Material hauling may occur at night.  
 There will be construction occurring in and around the Peace River at the dam site. 
 Public safety signs and beacons have been installed on the north and south banks of the 

Peace River, upstream and downstream of the dam site, to mark the boundaries of the 
active construction area. Until further notice, boaters will be able to pass through the 
dam site, but will not have shoreline access in the dam site construction area. A security 
boat will be actively monitoring boat traffic. 

 BC Hydro is monitoring air quality in the Site C project area. This data is being added to 
the Ministry of Environment’s B.C. Air Quality Monitoring Data 
(http://www.bcairquality.ca). The Ministry uses this data to report on air quality trends.  

 
Learn more 

 Visit the project website: sitecproject.com  
 Follow the Site C Twitter account: @sitecproject  
 Call the toll-free project line: 1-877-217-0777 
 Email the project team: sitec@bchydro.com 
 Send an enquiry or feedback online at: https://www.sitecproject.com/contact-us#enquiry 

 
Kindest regards, 
 

 
 

Diane McSherry 

 

cc: Tom Matus, District of Hudson’s Hope 

 
 

October 10, 2017 Regular Council Meeting Agenda

74 of 89

http://www.bcairquality.ca/
https://www.sitecproject.com/
https://twitter.com/sitecproject
mailto:sitec@bchydro.com
https://www.sitecproject.com/contact-us#enquiry


Construction Activities
October - December 2017

1016-C14-10038-1 R 0Sep. 12, 2017
Construction of the Site C Clean Energy Project is subject to required regulatory and p ermitting ap p rovals.

Date DWG NO

0 10 km

Map Notes:
1. Datum: NAD83
2. Projection: UTM Zone 10N
3. Base Data: Province of B.C.

1:250,000

The construction activities presented in this map are indicative onlyand may change as a result of procurement and project planning advancements.

Pa
th:

 X
:\A

rcG
ISP

roj
ec

ts\
Fir

st_
Na

tio
ns

\C
on

str
uc

tio
n_

Ac
tiv

itie
s_

10
16

_C
14

_1
00

38
-1.

mx
d

© BC Hydro 2017 – all rights reserved. This map  is for information p urp oses only and accuracy is not guaranteed.

Timber Removal and Wood 
Waste Disposal Areas

Transmission Line
Activities

Portage Mountain

Highway 29 Realignment
Halfway River Geotech Area

Highway 29 Realignment Cache
Creek Geotech Area

Highway 29 Realignment 
Farrell Creek Geotech Area

Highway 29 Realignment 
Lynx Creek Geotech Area

Highway 29 Realignment 
Dry Creek Geotech Area

Peace 
Canyon
Clearing

Highway 29 Realignment 
Farrell Creek East Geotech Area

Hudson's Hope 
Shoreline Protection

17

12

13

1

1
1

1

1

12

1

20

Peac
e R

ive
r Moberly R

iver

Pine River

Boucher Lake Road

Medicine Woman Road

Trapper Main RoadPeace 
Hill Road

Hwy 29-
1 Road

Monias Lake Road

Ice Bridge 3 Road

Peace 
Canyon 

Dam

Lynx Creek

Halfway River

Cache Creek
Charlie
Lake

Hudson's Hope

Fort St. John³

!.

!.

!.

!.

!.

!(29

A
L
B
E
R
T
A

!(97

Wuthrich

West Pine

Transmission Line
Railway

Taylor

Chetwynd
Dawson Creek

Hudson's Hope

Fort St. John

27
1 r

d

Charlie
Lake

¬«97

13

Wuthrich 
Quarry

10
271 Road

Wuthrich Inset

0 0.5 1  km

¬«97
Pine River

West Pine Inset

13
West Pine

Quarry

0 10.5  km
1:60,000

1:60,000

1

3

7
8

9

10
11
12
13

2 Access Roads at the Dam Site

Public Safety Signs & Beacons

4

5

6

North and South Bank 
Access Roads

Peace River Construction Bridge

Timber Removal and Wood Waste 
Disposal Areas

Worker Accommodation Area

Highway 29 Realignment
Hwy 29 Realignment 
Geotech Areas

!.

North Bank Excavation, 
Roads, Relocated Surplus 
Excavated Material & Dikes

14

15
16
17

Moberly Construction Bridge

Conveyor Corridor

Septimus Rail Siding

# View Point

Public Road Improvements
240, 269, 271, and Old Fort Road

Main Civil Works
Main Civil Works General Work 
Area

Transmission Line Activities

Dam Site Security
D Security Gates

! ! Security Fencing

Work Area (T&G Contractor)

Wuthrich, West Pine &
Portage Mountain Quarries

Construction Activity

18 Channel Enhancement Work
(Inspection Area)
Substation19

20 Hudson's Hope Shoreline 
Protection

October 10, 2017 Regular Council Meeting Agenda

75 of 89



Construction Activities
October - December 2017

1016-C14-10038-2 R 0Sep. 12, 2017
Construction of the Site C Clean Energy Project is subject to required regulatory and p ermitting ap p rovals.

Date DWG NO

0 2 km

Map Notes:
1. Datum: NAD83
2. Projection: UTM Zone 10N
3. Base Data: Province of B.C.

1:50,000

The construction activities presented in this map are indicative onlyand may change as a result of procurement and project planning advancements.

Pa
th:

 X
:\A

rcG
ISP

roj
ec

ts\
Fir

st_
Na

tio
ns

\C
on

str
uc

tio
n_

Ac
tiv

itie
s_

10
16

_C
14

_1
00

38
-2.

mx
d

© BC Hydro 2017 – all rights reserved. This map  is for information p urp oses only and accuracy is not guaranteed.

!

!

!

!

!

!

!

!

!

!

!

!

!

!

!

!

!

!

!

!

!

!

!

!

!

! !

!

!

!

!

!

!

!

!

!

!

!

!

!

!

!

!

!

!

!

!

!

!

!

!

!

!

!

!

!

!

!

!

!

!

!

!

!

!

!

!

!

!

!

!

!

!

!

!

!

!

!

!

!

!

!

!

!

!

!

!

!

!

!

!

!

!

!

!

!

!

!

!

!

!

!

!

!

!

!

!

!

!

!

!

!

!

!

!

!

!

!

!

!

! ! ! ! ! ! ! ! ! ! !

!

!

!

!

!

!

!

!

!

!

!

!

!

!

!

!

!

!

!

!

!

!

!

!

!

!

!

!

!

!

!

!

!

!

!

!

!

!

!

!

!

!

!

!

!

!

!

!

!

!

!

!

!

!
!

!
!

!
!

!
!

!
!

!

!

!

!

!
!

!

!

!

! ! ! !

!

!

!

!

!

! ! ! ! ! ! ! ! ! ! !

!

!

!

!

!

! !

!

!

!

!

!

!

!

!

!

! ! ! ! ! ! !

!

!

!

!

!

!

!

!

!

!

!

!

!

!

!

!

!

!

!

!

!

!

!

!

!

!

!

!

!

!

!

!

!

!

!

!

!

!

!

!

!

!

!

!

!

!

!
!

!

!

!

!

!

!

!

!

!

!

!

!

!

!

!

!

!

!

!

!

!

!

!

!

!

!

!

!

!

!

!

!

!

!

!

!

!

!

!

!

!

!

!

!

!

!

!

!

!

!

!

!

!

!

!

!

!

!

!

!

!

!

!

!

!

!

!

! ! ! ! ! ! ! ! ! ! ! ! ! ! ! ! ! ! ! !
!

!

!

!

!

!

!

!

!

!

!

!

!

!

!

! ! ! ! ! ! ! ! ! ! !
! ! ! ! !

!
!

!

!

!

!

!

!

!

!

!

!

!

!

!

!

!

!

!

!

!

!

!

!

!

!

!

!

!

!

!

!

!

!

!

!

!

!

!

!

!

!

!

! ! ! ! ! ! ! ! ! ! ! ! ! ! !

!

!

!

!

!

!

!

!

!

!

!

!

!

!

!

!

!

!

!

!

!

!

!

!

!

!

!

!

!

!

!

!

!

!

!

!

!

!

!

!

!

!

!

!

!

!

!

!

!

!

!

!

!

!

!

!

!

!

!

!

!

!

!

!

!

!

!

!

!

!

!

!

!

!

!

!

!

!

!

!

!

!

!

!

!

!

!

!

!

!

!

!

!

!

!

!

!

!

!

!

!

!

!

!

!

!

!

!

!

!

!

!

!

!

!

!

!

!

!

!

!

!

!

!

!

!

!

!

!

!

!

!

!

!

!

!

!

!

!

!

!

!

!

!

!

!

!

!

!

!

!

!

!

!

!

!

!

!

!

!

!

!

!

!

!

!

!

!

!

!

!

!

!

!

!

!

!

!

!

!

!

!

!

!

!

!

!

!

!

!

!

!

!

!

!

!

!

!

!

!

!

!

!

!

!

!

!

!

!

!

!

!

!

!

!

!

!

!

!

!

!

!

!

!

!

!

!

!

!

!

!

!

!

!

!

!

!

!

!

!

!

!

!

!

!

!

!

!

!

!

!

!

!

!

! ! ! ! !
!

!

!

!

!

!

!

!

!

!

!

!

!

!

!

!

!

!
!

!
!

!
!

!

! ! !

!
!

!

! !

!

!

!

!

!

!

!

!

!

!

!

!

!

!
!

!
!

!
!

!
!

!
!

!
!

!

!

!

!

!

!

!

!

!

!

!
!

!
!

!

!

!

!

!

!

!

!

!

!

!

!

!

!

!

!

!

!

!

!

!

!
!

!

!

!
!

!

!

!

!

!

!

!

!

!

!

!

!

!

!

!

!

!

!

!

!

!

!

!

!

!

!

!

!

!

!

!

!

!

!

!

!

!
!

!

!

!

!
!

!
!

!
!

!
!

!
!

!
!

!
!

!
!

!
!

!
!

!
!

!

!

!

!

!

!

!

!

!

!

!

!

!

!

!

!

!
!

!
!

!
!

!
!

!
!

!
!

!
!

!
!

!
!

!
!

!

!

!

!

!

! ! ! ! ! !

!
!

!
!

!
!

!
!

!
!

!
!

!
!

!

! ! ! ! ! !

!
!

!
!

!
!

!

!
!

!
!

!
!

!
!

!
!

!
!

!

!
! ! ! !

!
!

!
!

!
!

!
!

!
!

!
!

!
!

!
!

!
!

!
!

!
!

!
!

!
!

!
!

!
!

!
!

!
!

!
!

!

!

!

!

!
!

!

!

!

!

!

!

!

!

!

!

!

!

!

!

!

!

!

!

!

!

!
!

!
!

!
!

!

! ! ! ! ! ! ! !
!

! ! ! ! ! ! ! ! ! ! !

!

!

!

!

!

!

!

!

!

!

!

!

! !

! ! ! !

!

!

!
!

!
!

!

!

!

!

!

!

!

!

!

!

!

!

!
!

!
!

!
!

!
!

!
!

!
!

!

!

!

!

!

!

!

!

!

!

!

!

!

!

! ! ! ! ! ! ! ! ! ! ! ! ! ! ! ! ! ! ! ! ! ! ! ! ! ! !
! ! ! ! ! ! ! ! ! ! !

!

!

!

!

!

!

!

!

!

!

!

!

!

!

!

!
!

!

!

!

!

!

!

!

!

!

!

!

!

!

!

!

!

!

!

!

!

!

!

!

!

!

!

!

!

!

!

!

!

!

!

!

!

!

!

!

!

!

!

!

!

!

!

!

!

!

!

!

!

!

!

!

!

!

!

!

!

!

!

!

!

!

!

!

!

!

!

!

!

!

!

!

!

!

! ! ! ! ! ! ! ! !

!

!

!

!

!

!

!

!

!

!

! ! ! ! ! ! ! ! ! ! ! ! ! ! !

!

!

!

!

!

!

!

!

!

!

!

!

!

!

!

!

!

!

!

!

!

!

!

!

!

!

!

!

!

!

!

!

!

!

!

!

!

!

!

!

!

!

!

! ! ! ! ! ! ! ! ! ! ! ! ! !
!

!

!

!

!

!

!

!

!

!

!

!

!

!

!

!

!

!

!

!

!

!

!

!

!

!

!

!

!

!

!

!

!

!

!

!

!

!

!

!

!

!

!

!

!

!

!

!

!

!

!

!

!

!

!

!

!

!

!

!

!

!

!

!

!

!

!

!

!

!

!

!

!

!

!

!

!

!

!

!

!

!

!

!

!

!

!

!

!

!

!

!

!

!

!

!

!

!

!

!

!

!

!

!

!

!

!

!

!

!

!

!

!

!

!

!

!

!

!

!

!

!

!

!

!

!

!

!

!

!

!

!

!

!

!

!

!

!

!

!

!

!

!

!

!

!

!

!

!

!

!

!

!

!

!

!

!

!

!

!

!

!

!

!

!

!

!

!

!

!

!

!

!

!

!

!

!

!

!

!

!

!

!

!

!

!

!

!

!

!

!

!

!

!

!

!

!

!

!

!

!

!

!

!

!

!

!

!

!

!

!

!

!

!

!

!

!

!

!

!

!

!

!

!

!

!

!

!

!

!

!

!

!

!

!

!

!

!

!

!

!

!

!

!

!

!

!

!

!

!

!

!

!

!

!

! ! ! ! ! !
!

!
!

!
!

!
!

!
!

!
!

!
! ! ! ! ! ! ! ! !

!

!

!

!

!

!

!

!

!

!

!

! ! ! !
!

River Road

Howe Pit

Borrow
Area K South Bank

Initial Access Road

Septimus
Road

Waste Water
Disposal Area

Septimus
Siding

RSEM

North Bank
Road

North Bank 
Excavation

Worker
Accommodation

240 Road

269 Road
Old Fort

Road

Public Safety
Signs and Beacons

Work Area
(T&G Contractor)

Timber Removal and Wood 
Waste Disposal Areas

Viewpoint

Viewpoint
Road

Security
FencingSecurity

Fencing

Main 
Gate B

Main Gate A

Security
Fencing

Peace River
Construction

Bridge

Public Safety 
Signs and Beacons

Gate CSouth Bank
Access Road

Repeater/Substation
Access Road

Conveyor
Corridor

Fort St. John
Substation

(FJN)

Transmisison Line
Activities

Main Civil
Works

Substation

Channel Enhancement

2

52

5

5

5

2

2

6

11

14

11

9

9

9

9

4

3

3
2

10

10

10

7

8

9

9

2 2

12

16

17

14

18

19

85th Ave
Industrial Lands

14

Temporary Gate A 9

15
Moberly River Construction

Bridge 14

14

5

5

5
5

RSEM

RSEM

RSEM

RSEM

Peace River

Moberly R
iver

Pine River

1L
37

4

1L360

1L364

1L367

1L371

RSEM
5

³

!.

!.

!.

!.

!.

!(

Index

29

A
L
B
E
R
T
A

!(97

Transmission Line
Railway

Taylor

Chetwynd
Dawson Creek

Hudson's Hope

Fort St. John

1

3
4

7

8

9

10
11
12
13

2 Access Roads at the Dam Site

Public Safety Signs & Beacons

5

6

North and South Bank 
Access Roads

Peace River Construction Bridge

Timber Removal and Wood Waste 
Disposal Areas

Worker Accommodation Area

Highway 29 Realignment
Hwy 29 Realignment 
Geotech Areas

!.

North Bank Excavation, 
Roads, Relocated Surplus 
Excavated Material & Dikes

14

15
16
17

Moberly Construction Bridge

Conveyor Corridor

Septimus Rail Siding

# View Point

Public Road Improvements
240, 269, 271, and Old Fort Road

Main Civil Works
Main Civil Works General Work 
Area

Transmission Line Activities

Dam Site Security
D Security Gates

! ! Security Fencing

Work Area (T&G Contractor)

Construction Activity

18 Channel Enhancement Work
(Inspection Area)

Substation19

Wuthrich, West Pine &
Portage Mountain Quarries

20 Hudson's Hope Shoreline 
Protection

October 10, 2017 Regular Council Meeting Agenda

76 of 89



1

Tammy McKeown

Subject: FW: 2017 CEO Forum - Correction/Clarification

 
 

From: Errin Morrison [mailto:emorrison@lgla.ca]  
Sent: Tuesday, October 03, 2017 2:25 PM 
To: Errin Morrison <emorrison@lgla.ca> 
Subject: 2017 CEO Forum ‐ Correction/Clarification 

 
A couple of points of clarification on the 2017 CEO Forum: 
 
1) The dates are Thursday, December 7 - Friday, December 8 (not Wednesday, December 7 as noted 
incorrectly in the flyer) 
2) The event is open to Mayors, Regional District Chairs, and Chiefs only. 
 
My apologies for the confusion. 
 
Regards, 
 
Errin Morrison 
Program Manager 
Local Government Leadership Academy 
778-800-9952 (ext. 101) | lgla.ca 
 

From: Errin Morrison <emorrison@lgla.ca>  
To: <info@lgla.ca>  
Sent: 10/3/2017 10:50 AM  
Subject: 2017 LGLA CEO Forum - Registration Open  

Attention Chief Elected Officials, 
 
Registration is now open for the Local Government Leadership Academy's 2017 CEO Forum - to be held 
December 7-8 at the Radisson Hotel Vancouver Airport in Richmond. Join Gordon McIntosh, Tracey 
Lorenson and Don Lidstone for this timely, leadership development opportunity where you will gain the tools 
and confidence to Finish Strong and Make the Most of Year 4! The forum features ample opportunity to 
learn from the experts and from one another, and will cover topics such as: 

 Using a Strategic Alignment Checklist as a governance check-in tool 
 Aligning and assessing CAO performance expectations 
 Determining strategic priorities for the 2018 budget 
 Exploring leadership strategies and enhancing Council/Board dynamics 
 Identifying key political orientation needs after the 2018 elections  

The forum runs from 10:30 Thursday, December 7th to 3:30 Friday, December 8th and includes meals at a 
cost of $400+GST. Rooms are available at the reduced rate of $135/night at the Radisson. Please see the 
attached form for program details and register through the link below. 

October 10, 2017 Regular Council Meeting Agenda

77 of 89

clerk
Typewritten Text
C10



2

 
Register: www.civicinfo.bc.ca/event/2017/LGLA-CEOForum 
 
Questions can be directed to... 
 
Errin Morrison 
Program Manager 
Local Government Leadership Academy 
778-800-9952 (ext. 101) | lgla.ca 

October 10, 2017 Regular Council Meeting Agenda

78 of 89



1

Tammy McKeown

Subject: FW: Letter from the Honourable Katrine Conroy

From: Kuharic, Rhea MCF:EX [mailto:Rhea.Kuharic@gov.bc.ca]  
Sent: October 4, 2017 11:10 AM 
To: Tammy McKeown <clerk@hudsonshope.ca> 
Subject: Letter from the Honourable Katrine Conroy 
 

Ref:  233709 
 
Her Worship Mayor Gwen Johannson and Council 
District of Hudson's Hope 
E-mail:  district@hudsonshope.ca 
 
Dear Mayor Johannson and Council: 
 
As the new Minister of Children and Family Development, I am honoured and delighted to proclaim October as 
Foster Family Month. This is the 27th Anniversary of Foster Family Month in British Columbia – a time to acknowledge, 
celebrate and express our appreciation to foster caregivers for their incredible commitment and support to the children, 
youth and their families in our communities. 
 
The Ministry of Children and Family Development and Delegated Aboriginal Agencies provide supports and services in 
your community. With approximately 6,900 children and youth in care across British Columbia, government relies on 
caregivers to provide day-to-day stability, care, and support to the children and youth placed in their care. 
 
Foster Family Month is a wonderful opportunity to express our gratitude and thank caregivers for their many years of 
service to the fostering community and the citizens of this province. Foster caregivers are a crucial component of the child 
welfare system and we depend on these individuals to fulfill this challenging and important role. Foster caregivers are 
compassionate, dedicated, caring citizens whose important work often goes unnoticed. They are amazing people who 
reach out to help a child during their greatest time of need.  
 
The Fostering Connection Web site has information to help raise awareness of fostering in your community. For more 
information please open the following link at: http://fosteringconnections.ca. We will also be featuring interviews with 
foster caregivers whose first-hand experience – speaks to the joys, challenges and rewards of this important role. These 
will be available on the Government of British Columbia Facebook page.  
 
I encourage you to take time to recognize and celebrate Foster Family Month wherever possible. Your personal 
acknowledgement and recognition of caregivers will help to raise the awareness of fostering in your community.  
 
On behalf of the Government of British Columbia, thank you for your recognition and continued support of foster 
caregivers in your community who care for this province’s children- and youth-in-care. 
 
Sincerely,  
 
ORIGINAL SIGNED BY 
 
Katrine Conroy 
Minister of Children and Family Development 

October 10, 2017 Regular Council Meeting Agenda

79 of 89

clerk
Typewritten Text
C11



2017 Convention Evaluation   
Your opinion matters to UBCM. Please take a few minutes to fill out the 2017 
Convention evaluation by Friday, October 13. All completed surveys will be 
entered into a draw to win an Apple iPad 9.7" 32GB with Wi-Fi in Space 
Grey. 

2018 Convention Hotel Block
UBCM has secured a hotel block for our next Convention in Whistler, 
September 10-14, 2018. The hotel block will open on Monday, October 16, 
2017 at 9 am. The list of hotels that included in the block will be made 
available in the Compass next week.  

Wheelchair Accessible Transportation  
The Passenger Transportation Board has released its report, Wheelchair 
Accessible Transportation in BC: Update 2017. The report reviews progress 
made on accessibility over the last 5 years and points to areas for further 
improvement. Local governments interested in the accessibility of commercial 
passenger transportation (taxis in particular) are encouraged to review the 
report. Read more

Funding & Resources Update  
Each month we provide an update on UBCM funding programs and 
information on other programs or resources that may be of interest to local 
governments and First Nations. Read more

October 4, 2017

Follow us on 
Twitter

Convention Photos 
available on Flickr

© Copyright Union of British Columbia Municipalities 2017

October 10, 2017 Regular Council Meeting Agenda

80 of 89

clerk
Typewritten Text
C12



1

Tammy McKeown

From: Susan Chalmers <schalmers@communityenergy.bc.ca>
Sent: October 5, 2017 10:56 AM
To: Gwen Johansson; Tammy McKeown
Subject: Request to Add Information to Upcoming Council Meeting Agenda

Good morning Mayor Johansson and Admin staff, 
 
In follow up to our recent direct mail letter to Mayor and Council, the Community Energy Association (CEA) requests the 
following information be included in Council’s upcoming agenda package under “For Information”. 
 
The BC Municipal Climate Leadership Council invites Mayors, Councillors, Area Directors and senior staff to join them at 
the Climate Leadership Institute (CLI) from November 1‐3, 2017 in Richmond, BC. This intensive climate action training 
will offer locally elected officials the practical skills and knowledge needed to lead their communities into the green 
future they desire. 
 
Keynote speakers include: 

 Mike Harcourt, Former Mayor of the City of Vancouver and Premier of BC 

 Travis Streb, Communications coach and group facilitator for business leaders with the Humphrey Group  

 Mayor Richard Walton, District of North Vancouver and Chair of BCMCLC 

 Mayor Lawrence Chernoff, City of Castlegar and BCMCLC member 
 
CLI offers 3 credit hours toward any level of Local Government Leadership 
Academy (LGLA) Certification. Further information about this event and 
registration is available at www.BCMCLC.ca/CLI or contact Janice Keyes at 
604‐561‐0646 or jkeyes@communityenergy.bc.ca.  
 
Kind Regards, 
Susan 
 
Susan Chalmers, Administrator 

 
 
Facilitators of the BC Municipal Climate Leadership Council 
 
Tel: (604) 628‐7076 | Mobile: (778) 871‐2711 
Connect with CEA: Website | Facebook | Twitter | LinkedIn 

October 10, 2017 Regular Council Meeting Agenda

81 of 89

clerk
Typewritten Text
C13



MAYOR’S REPORT to COUNCIL:  UBCM 2017 
 
 
Mayor’s Caucus:  Focused on governance, whether all councils should have a code of conduct, and 
whether having Council evaluations are worthwhile.  Discussion about creating a provincial code of 
conduct instead of each municipality doing them individually.  Discussion about not allowing use cell 
phones / social media during Council meetings.   If Council is interested in doing some work on 
governance in the next year, or after that, some of the speakers at this session were good: Reece 
Harding, Partner, Young Anderson; Tracey Lorenson, Principal, Paragon Strategic Services; Frank 
Leonard, former mayor. 
Other possibilities include information from the John Carver Municipal Coaching group and the followers 
of the manual Heather handed around. 
 
Hudson’s Hope Ministry Meetings by Topic: 
Health & Ambulance:   

‐ Our two issues for meetings with Ministry and Northern Health were the Doctor’s concern 
about continuity of care and ambulance service. 

‐ Kathy Ulrich was quite certain that the doctor’s concerns could be addressed and she would 
be in contact with Becky Temple about that.  She feels that the criteria for continuity of care 
in a solo doctor clinic is met through notifying doctors in adjacent communities.  This 
arrangement does usually require some reciprocity so our Doctor may be asked to do similar 
service for the neighbours.  

‐ good news on the ambulance front, it seems.  They see the four hour paid shift as an interim 
measure and, assuming their plan comes to fruition, there will soon be paid on‐call coverage 
for full time attendants.  Hope it turns out to be the case. 

‐ The 3 time postponement that Bob mentioned in implementing the BC Emergency Services 
and STARS ambulance service remains a mystery.  Northern Health says it is not them – they 
have no say in ambulance services.  Someone said it was an issue of licensing the Alberta 
people in BC but Bob says that has all been dealt with.  So Bob will get more information and 
we will follow up some more.  It would be a very good addition to regional ambulance 
service. 

Ministry of Public Safety & Solicitor General: Fentanyl house 
‐ Wallace’s brief much appreciated. 
‐ Contact: Tonia Enger, Executive Director of Policing, Law Enforcement Operations and 

Deputy Director of Police Services (the on‐the‐ground contact) 
‐ Contact:  Valerie Harrison, Ministerial Assistant, 250 356 2178 

Ministry Environment & Climate Change:   
‐ Originally, we were taking the fentanyl house to the Ministry of Environment but we were 

transferred to Public Safety & Solicitor General (PS&SG)  However MoE representatives said 
that they still had some responsibilities in the area of contaminated sites and enforcement.  
Wallace got a very good contact within MoE for the fentanyl house and that, combined with 
the ones we got at PS&SG provide us with very good information sources.   

‐ We spoke about Lynx Creek contamination and the water programs underway in the area.  
Also about the need to continue with testing, annually at minimum.   

‐ Mentioned the interest of UVic Specialist in sedimentation movement and the need to find 
matching funds for a Master’s student.   

‐ Contact: Mark Zacharias, Deputy Minister.  He was quite familiar with the uniqueness of the 
Brenot/Lynx Creek situation and appeared supportive.  I will also contact GeoScience BC. 

October 10, 2017 Regular Council Meeting Agenda

82 of 89

clerk
Typewritten Text
CR1



 
 
Cabinet Ministers’ Panel: 
There were four Panels.  I attended the one with Carole James (Finance & Deputy Premier), Selina 
Robinson (Municipal Affairs), Clair Trevena (MOTI), Lisa Bair (Tourism, Arts Culture), Harry 
Bains,Business & Labour) and Selina Robinson (Municipal Affairs). 
 
 
Some interesting topics:  
Renewable Energy:  There will be a new climate leadership team, which will look at retrofits in addition 
to what the last climate group focused on.  
Airports: 10 small airports across Canada close every year.  
Greyhound Application to reduce routes: the questioner was from Silverton (West Kootenay) and 
wanted a rural transit policy. The Minister suggested that concerned people all send letters.  
Pine Pass – Mayor of Chetwynd outlined the recent flooding events which have closed the Pine Pass for 
extended periods and asked what might be done to keep the road open.  ANS:  MOTI is aware of the 
importance of the Pine Pas and the need to keep it open and continues to work on it.  
Procurement:  Mayor of Tofino wants to change the culture of public procurement.  She & her 
neighbours want to cooperate to use economies of scale to reduce unit costs of supplies. Minister 
Robinson wanted to hear more.  
Syrian Refugees:  Summerland representative pointed out that many of the Syrian refugees come from 
rural areas.  He wants to know how to get more of them to the Summerland area, where they could find 
work.  
 
 
Meetings as part of PRRD delegation 
Monday, September 25 
Ministry of Environment: Pink Mountain Ecological Reserve:  

‐ Presented the Pink Mountain Report done by Ron Long and asked that the area be 
protected as an ecological reserve. 

‐ Province seems agreeable to moving forward but first wanted to know whether First 
Nations have been approached.  Some informal discussions have taken place, mostly with 
Blueberry but nothing formal.  PRRD will be setting up meetings with First Nations and local 
residents to explain the proposal and determine local support. 

‐ Contact:  David Morel, Asst. Deputy Minister 778 698 4900  Cell:250 514 7655 
Ministry of Municipal Affairs and Housing:  Appointment of rural & municipal alternate directors: 

‐ Issue is that municipalities with more than 1 director are allowed to appoint their whole 
council as alternate directors but electoral areas and small municipalities are only allowed 
one representative. 

‐ It was a new issue for the ministry.  They will do some research to determine the reason for 
the legislation being worded as it is.   

‐ Contact: Gary Paget, Senior Advisor, Local Government Division, 778 698 3210, or Tara 
Faganello, Asst. Deputy Minister, 250 356 6575 

Ministry FLNRO: Crown land for Peace Lookout Park:  (near FSJ) 
‐ Positive response. 

October 10, 2017 Regular Council Meeting Agenda

83 of 89



Thursday, September 28 
Ministry of Agriculture:  Horticulture Study 

‐ Minister was very interested in the study.  They will be releasing an agriculture paper in 
coming days.  The Peace will be an important part of that.  Rob Fraser mentioned the 
possibility of getting a person to jump‐start the work on horticulture (bringing people 
together to form an association, looking into processing and marketing, etc.) 

 
Overall, a productive UBCM. 
 
 
Respectfully Submitted 
 
Gwen Johansson (Mayor) 
 
 

 

October 10, 2017 Regular Council Meeting Agenda

84 of 89



UBCM 2017 REPORT 

Last year my report was quite in depth and had some actions items in it that were directed to budget and 

strategic planning sessions which never came to fruition, so I am not motivated to prepare such a report this 

year. I hope you understand.  

The ministry meetings went well. Meetings with ministry staff went well. (I assume Mayors report will have 

details, so I will leave that to her report) 

Keynote speaker Terry Milewski was fabulous. His message was targeted towards” fake news”. His message; 

Be careful what you believe and be careful how you may be contributing to this harmful phenomenon.  

All three of our resolutions passed. I spoke in support of the one regarding the Ambulance stand‐by wages 

increase. As it had “no recommendation” from UBCM resolutions committee I felt I had to speak as sponsor.  

Again, I felt one of the most advantageous parts of UBCM is the relationship and team building that is done. 

Kelly, Dave and I spent a lot of time together and I enjoyed it thoroughly. It is important to build relationships 

with your colleagues.  

                 

 

Sincerely, Councillor Nicole Gilliss 

 

October 10, 2017 Regular Council Meeting Agenda

85 of 89

clerk
Typewritten Text
CR2



UBCM Report‐ Councillor Heiberg 

 

We had a very busy meeting schedule at UMBC this year and in my option, the staff and Ministry 

meetings went very well. As such, we did not have time to attend many policy sessions or workshops. 

 

The following is a brief review for the two meetings for which I took the lead. We followed our briefing 

notes very closely which may be reviewed for a detailed synopsis. 

 

MOTI meeting with staff. (Scott Maxwell) 15 minutes. 

 

‐ Discussion regarding the intersection at the Post Office and pedestrian traffic. Stressed the need 

for better signage and proper pedestrian crossing.  

 

‐ Pedestrian crosswalks at the Visitor Information Centre. 

 

‐ Berm and sight lines at the entrance to the waste transfer site. 

 

‐ Osborne Street, access and tragic management plan. 

 

‐ Hwy 29, passing lanes, transition between proposed Site C highway realignment and existing 

road system. 

 

MIRR (Ministry of Indigenous Relations and Reconciliation) meeting with Ministers Scott Fraser and 

Selina Robinson and staff. 15 minutes. 

 

‐ PMT (Peace Moberly Tract / Saulteau Agreement), questions regarding governance and land 

use. Concerns regarding the implications of TLE (Treaty Land Entitlement) and TLA ( Tripartite 

Land Agreements) in addition to the PMT. Significant land use concerns. 

 

‐ Asked for better consultation / communication between all interested parties, the First Nation 

groups, the Province, and the District of Hudson's Hope. 

 

October 10, 2017 Regular Council Meeting Agenda

86 of 89

clerk
Typewritten Text
CR3



‐ Disposition of Crown Lands. The District should be given the same consideration as other parties 

with regard to the disposition of Crown Land. Light Industrial land purchase used as an example. 

 

October 10, 2017 Regular Council Meeting Agenda

87 of 89



UBCM report- Councillor Miller 
 
Min of Health (Staff)  
Meeting was lively and informative: Addressed needs of a single physician practice vs other models. BC 
ambulance service was invited to attend Ministry staff while we were indicating our concerns for 
Hudson's Hope. 
 
Ministry staff seemed to listen and value our input. 
 
Dr. Courtney was immediately recognised for what we already know: his dedication and eagerness to 
advocate for his patients. I feel this was one of the most productive meetings I attended with our 
Council. 
 
Tech in BC 'Connected Communities' 
Wed 5:30 Hosted by Joel McKay NDIT Trust  
Interesting session – with the PureFibre in the town core, we really need to promote and develop plans 
for Hudson's Hope. Expansion Beryl P. Lynx etc.. 
Personal, EMS, Business: existing and expanding, tourism, safety and monitoring we should expand 
coverage to as many people here - repeaters, microcell, Bullhead installation… 
 
Sharon Smith (Gran Isle) and Howard Randell referenced NetworkBC as good resource 
 
Morning Resource Breakfast series: Mining Energy Forestry  
 
I found these meetings interesting and attended by a diverse group.  
Chetwynd, Dawson, Fort St. John elected officials dotted the room as well as Ministry staff and officials. 
 
Tuesday's breakfast featured Minister Mungall as a guest speaker. She was eloquent and passionate 
about the energy sector in BC and our positon as a province in the larger picture on a provincial and 
federal level. Her topics included the new renewables such as solar, wind and geothermal, and although 
her past MLA position perhaps influenced overzealously stating that the Revelstoke Mica dam produces 
half of BC's power, there were many Peace area attendees that clarified. 
 Sonia Furstenau sat with our table for this breakfast session – good conversation. 
 
Energy on Wednesday and Forestry on Thurs. finished the series. Mayor Bumstead  spoke well for the 
region. Interestingly, Susan Yurkovich now of Council of Forestry Industries, was the moderator.  
 
 
MIABC meeting was, well, necessary.  
We are charter members of the Municipal Insurance Association of BC, and Hudson's Hope was 
recognised as such as they celebrate 30 years. AGM Election, and a whirlwind of information was heard. 
(!)  
Inquiries regarding their opinion on or new solar array project 
 
Tuesday Min ENV, Health, IR&R,  
These meetings with Ministers and Staff seemed to go well for us. In discussion with other Councils, 
there seems to be a general 'change' in the way we are being listened to, and perhaps a willingness to 
work with us.  

October 10, 2017 Regular Council Meeting Agenda

88 of 89

clerk
Typewritten Text
CR4



 
I would like to thank our staff for coordinating these events and  compiling our documents: as always, 
the packages were packed full of all the pertinent information needed to make it through a very hectic 
week. Thanks all. 

October 10, 2017 Regular Council Meeting Agenda

89 of 89


	c7.2.pdf
	Introduction
	Minimum Age
	Personal Possession - Adults
	Personal Possession – Youths
	Public consumption
	Cannabis Smoking and Vaping
	Other forms of consumption:

	Drug-impaired Driving
	Personal Cultivation
	Distribution Model
	Retail

	Conclusion




